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2020 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jeff McClure, President
Mike Murphy, Vice President
Atul Deshmane, Secretary

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1
of Whatcom County
Agenda for the
Regular Meeting of May 12, 2020
8:00 a.m. at the PUD Office
1. Call to Order | Pledge of Allegiance
2. Approval of Agenda
3. Consent Agenda
a) Approval of Meeting Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 28, 2020
b) Approval of Claims for May 12, 2020
4. Old Business
5. New Business
a) Approve 2019 Financial Report
b) Approve Professional Consulting Services Agreement with The Energy Authority
c) Approve Amendment No. 1 with Washington State Dept. of Fish and Wildlife
d) Approve Professional Consulting Services Agreement with Aspect Consulting LLC
6. General Manager Report
7. Commissioner Reports
8. Executive Session: Potential Litigation - RCW 42.30.110(i)

9. Adjourn
Note: Whatcom PUD’s Offices are currently closed to public access. Due to the Updated Open Public
Meetings Act General Guidance Regarding the COVID-19 Event, the PUD Meeting Room will not be
open to the public. All Commissioners will participate via teleconference.
The public meeting can accessed by internet:
Link to join webinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/95040235100
Or by telephone: Dial 1 (253) 215 8782 or 1 (346) 248 7799 or 1 (669) 900 6833
Webinar ID: 950 4023 5100
Next Commission Meeting
May 26, 2020 |8:00 a.m. | Regular Meeting
Until further notice: Due to the Updated Open Public Meetings Act General Guidance Regarding the COVID-19 Event, the
PUD Meeting Room will not be open to the public. All Commissioners will participate via teleconference.
The public can join the meeting by teleconference – access information will be announced.
(360) 384-4288  www.pudwhatcom.org

AGENDA ITEM # 3a
May 12, 2020

DRAFT
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR
MEETING OF THE COMMISSION
April 28, 2020

1. Call to Order | Pledge of Allegiance
The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County was
called to order at 8:00 a.m. by Commissioner Jeff McClure and Pledge of Allegiance recited. Said meeting
was open to the public and notice thereof had been given as required by law. Those present via
teleconference included Commissioner Mike Murphy, Commissioner Jeff McClure, Commissioner Atul
Deshmane, Legal Counsel Jon Sitkin, and Legal Counsel Tom Mortimer. Staff attending via teleconference:
Steve Jilk, General Manager, Brian Walters, Assistant General Manager; Ann Grimm, Administrative
Assistant; Duane Holden, Director of Utility Operations; Rebecca Schlotterback, Manager of Contracts and
Regulatory Compliance; Annette Smith, Director of Finance; Aaron Peterson, IT/SCADA Technician; Mike
Macomber, IT/SCADA Technician; and Traci Irvine, Accountant I.
Public attending via teleconference:
Rich Maricle, Citizen
Lauren Turner, Phillips 66
Joe Beaulaurier, My Ferndale News
2. Approval of Agenda
No changes made.
ACTION: Commissioner Deshmane motioned to APPROVE THE APRIL 28, 2020 AGENDA.
Commissioner Murphy second the motion. Motion passed unanimously.
3. Consent Agenda
a. Approval of the Meeting Minutes of April 14, 2020 as presented;
b. Approval of the Claims of April 28, 2020:
VENDOR NAME
BAKER SEPTIC TANK PUMPING
BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION
BROWN & KYSAR, INC.
CDW
CHMELIK SITKIN & DAVIS
COMCAST
EDGE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC
FERNDALE ACE HARDWARE
GATEWAY CONTROLS
HARDWARE SALES, INC
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
IVOXY CONSULTING LLC
LYNDEN TRIBUNE
NORTHWEST CASCADE, INC.
PACIFIC SURVEY & ENGINEERING

AMOUNT
160.00
809,657.00
87,317.74
1,261.94
6,820.00
184.92
20.00
21.81
172.95
1,302.00
151.65
15,793.74
4,082.14
65.00
112.50
1,482.50
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PARAMOUNT SUPPLY COMPANY
PAYLOCITY
PAYROLL
PLATT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO
PORTAL WAY FARM & GARDEN
PUGET SOUND ENERGY, INC
SOFTWIRED
SOUND WATER SERVICES
STERICYCLE ENVIRONMENTAL SOL.
ULINE, INC.
WA FEDERAL
WA ST DEPT OF REVENUE
WESTERN CONF OF TEAMSTERS
GRAND TOTAL

$

880.95
134.33
167,414.99
25.67
133.68
224.03
1,000.00
4,200.00
82.50
552.67
4,594.26
78,110.46
8,668.75
1,194,628.18

ACTION: Commissioner Murphy motioned to APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. Commissioner
Deshmane second the motion. Motion passed unanimously.
4. Old Business
None.
5. New Business
a) Award of Bid: 115kV Substation Electrical Equipment
The Ferndale Substation serving Water Treatment Plant No. 1 was built in the 1960s and owned
by Puget Sound Energy. In 2011, the District purchased the substation from PSE. The substation
has not been upgraded since construction and has the original single transformer.
Testing of electrical gear in the substation during 2016 revealed that the secondary voltage
(2400V) side is in very poor condition and should be replaced. During 2017, District staff with
support of engineering consultants discussed conceptual design, location and potential costs of a
new substation. The 2018 Capital Improvements Budget included the preliminary design and
engineering of the new Ferndale Substation (CIP-E22). During the 2018-2019 period,
engineering, permitting and final design have been substantially completed.
Final substation site design is dependent on the major electrical equipment to be selected in
accordance with project specifications. These electrical components of the substation, two 115kV
Circuit Switchers, have long lead times. The time between issuance of a purchase order to
delivery of the equipment to the job site may be 12 to 24 weeks. Therefore, purchase of the
equipment must proceed prior to the completion of the final site design, as the specifications of
the equipment selected will drive the design.
Due to the circumstances described above, District staff elected to proceed with two separate bid
processes, one for the equipment purchase and a second for the construction of the substation.
On April 16, 2020, the District received and publicly read aloud three (3) bids submitted for this
project. The Engineer’s Estimate for the total purchase of equipment, is $150,000.00, not
including tax.
The bid from McKaig Evergreen Inc. did not include acknowledgment of Addendum No. 1.
McKaig Evergreen Inc. bid does not meet the specifications and staff determined the McKaig
Evergreen Inc. bid to be non-responsive. The three bids are as follows:
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Switchgear Bid
McKaig Evergreen Inc.
Southern States
Anixter Inc.

Bid Total No Tax
$77,280.00
$115,400.00
$139,480.00

Engineer’s Estimate

$150,000.00

Since the McKaig Evergreen Inc. bid was deemed to be non-responsive, staff recommends
awarding the Switchgear Bid to Southern States. The total bid price for the equipment is below
the Engineer’s Estimate (tax not included).
This Project is funded for 2020, as part of the approved Capital Improvement Projects (CIP E-22)
Budget. There is no fiscal impact.
Further, during the COVID-19 pandemic event, and in accordance with Governor Inslee’s Open
Public Meetings Act Proclamation 20-28, “…public agencies are further prohibited from taking
“action,” as defined in RCW 42.30.020, unless those matters are necessary and routine
matters…” As such, approval of this project is:
Essential – The substation is in need of immediate upgrade to maintain safety and comply with
applicable regulatory requirements. Due to the long lead-time to obtain purchased equipment,
procurement of the substation equipment is essential and necessary for maintaining the District’s
critical infrastructure and the project should not be delayed further.
Routine – This is a routine approval in that the purchase of equipment would be approved by the
Commission as part of the regular course of action. The substation upgrade is part of the Capital
Improvement Project previously approved by the Commission.
ACTION: Commissioner Deshmane motioned to AWARD EQUIPMENT PURCHASE TO
SOUTHERN STATES FOR THE CIRCUIT SWITCHERS FOR THE FERNDALE
SUBSTATION PROJECT (CIP-E22) IN THE AMOUNT OF $115,400.00 NOT INCLUDING
TAX AND AUTHORIZE THE DISTRICT’S GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE
PURCHASE. Commissioner Murphy second the motion. Motion passed unanimously.
b) Approve Resolution No. 733 – Use of Electronic Signatures
Background: The Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (UETA) authorizes governmental
agencies, including the District, to determine whether they will accept, rely, process, or otherwise
use electronic records and signatures. Using electronic records and electronic signatures can
benefit Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County (District) by decreasing District reliance
on paper transactions and physical documents, thereby saving time, reducing the costs associated
with the conduct of District business.
Further, during the COVID-19 pandemic it has become necessary and essential to establish a
process for individuals with signature authority to sign documents remotely without necessitating
execution of documents in person.
This Resolution sets forth the District policy determination to use electronic records and
electronic signatures as authorized by the UETA, and authorizes the District General Manager to
establish such policies in conformance with RCW 19.360.
No District Commissioner is required to allow the use of electronic signatures, but may elect to
do so under this policy.
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There is no fiscal impact, however; it is anticipated that this measure will result in cost savings to
the District. Commissioner McClure commented that this is a good policy to implement.
Commissioner Murphy would like to add that the resolution should be revisited at the end of June
2020. As such, the Resolution was amended with the expiration date of June 30, 2020.
ACTION: Commissioner Murphy motioned to APPROVE RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
USE AND ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC RECORDS AND SIGNATURES, TO EXPIRE
ON JUNE 30, 2020. Commissioner Deshmane second the motion. Motion passed unanimously.
6. General Manager Report
COVID-19 Update
Jilk reported that staff has updated the ‘COVID-19 Schedule’ through the end of May, as we are awaiting
the guidelines from Governor Inslee on May 4. Water and Electric Operations at the District remains in
check, and staff is doing a great job with social distancing efforts, including working remotely. The
District continues no interruption of any District services while keeping employees safe. Meter reads are
due at the end of the month and Jilk will have a better idea if any of the industries, especially on the
Grandview Water System, have shut down or are using less water due to the pandemic. No notifications
of big shutdowns have been received; however, staff will be monitoring usage and the budget for any
impacts.
Alcoa/Intalco Shutdown Impact
The news that Alcoa/Intalco will be shuttering and closing the plant at the end of June was discussed.
The loss of approximately 700 jobs will be detrimental to the county. Murphy inquired if there are other
projects that the District can support. Staff will be looking at the impact on the 2020 budget (end of June
to year-end) that the shutdown will have on the District.
Jilk added that staff has prioritized the Capital Improvement Projects list and discussed different “what if”
scenarios, such as Phillips66 and/or BP Cherry Point refineries begin to lower their amounts of water
consumption. Discussions should take place with the refineries as to any forecasted reduction in their
output products.
WPUDA Update
Some PUDs are beginning to put their start-up plans in place for when the Governor lifts the stay at home
order.
7. Commissioners Report
Commissioner Murphy said he would have never thought something like this pandemic would happen
and how he appreciates having reliable fiber service to be able to communicate and work remotely;
however, not everyone in Whatcom County has access. He would like to have the District put a higher
priority on fiber in the county, whether this means greater support on the Port’s broadband effort or
securing grants for funding, etc.
McClure added that he also wants to take a broader look at broadband infrastructure. The issue of needs
for student learning has impacted the need for broadband service in the county.
Deshmane said it will be challenging, however; there is SkagitNet to use as a model (not the retail part),
but to create the fiber backbone. McClure suggested entering into a stronger relationship with the Port to
discuss options and pitfalls, along with lessons learned from Skagit.
Jilk suggested discussing more about the project with SkagitNet/Skagit County at the second Commission
Meeting in May.
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Commissioner McClure commented that the Alcoa/Intalco closure will have a huge impact and ripple
effect in Whatcom County. He would like to discuss strategic planning efforts to possibly acquire BPA
assets such as the substation and distribution lines, as time is of the essence. Assistant General Manager
Brian Walters has discussed this scenario with BPA Transmission staff and reinforced the District’s
strong interest in BPA’s 230kV lines and substation at Intalco and BPA was receptive to discussing the
idea; however, a three-way discussion will be needed. ALCOA/BPA/PUD all need to be part of the
discussion.
This is a direct relation to the District’s Strategic Plan, regarding strategies for economic
development/infrastructure support for Cherry Point industrial area – whether it be renewables or other
types of development, these kinds of facilities are key to the effort. Murphy and Deshmane were in
agreement with McClure about discussing purchasing the facilities.
McClure would like to have staff determine the value of the BPA facilities at Intalco, including all energy
transmission/distribution points at Cherry Point and present a report on the potential cost and strategic
opportunities/benefit.
8. Executive Session
Commission President Jeff McClure requested an Executive Session pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1) (i) to
discuss potential litigation.
The estimated time for the Executive Session was one hour (60) minutes. The Commission President
indicated that no action was anticipated to occur after the adjournment of the Executive Session. After a
five-minute recess, Commissioner McClure adjourned the Commission into Executive Session at 8:55
a.m.
 The Commission held Executive Session on a separate Zoom Room platform for privacy and security
matters meeting open public meeting requirements.
 At 10:00 a.m., the Commission President extended the Executive Session for another thirty (30)
minutes. Below is a screenshot of the notice of extension on the regular Commission Meeting
webinar platform:

 At 10:30 a.m., the Commission President extended the Executive Session for an additional fifteen
(15) minutes.
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Executive Session Adjourn
There being no further business for the Executive Session, the Commission reconvened to the regular
meeting at 10:42 a.m. and rejoined the regular Commission Meeting webinar platform.
9. Adjourn
There being no further business for the regular meeting, the Commission adjourned the regular meeting at
10:45 a.m.

Jeffrey McClure, President

Michael Murphy, Vice President

Atul Deshmane, Secretary
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AGENDA ITEM # 5a
May 12, 2020

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO.1
of Whatcom County
1705 Trigg Road  Ferndale, WA 98248
P: (360) 384-4288  F: (360) 384-4849

Memo
To:

Commissioners Deshmane, McClure, and Murphy

From: Annette Smith, Director of Finance
Date:

May 12, 2020

Re:

2019 Annual Financial Report

Requested Action: ACCEPT THE DISTRICT’S 2019 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT AND
AUTHORIZE THE SUBMITAL TO THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE.
Background: Staff will provide a presentation/overview of the report and provide opportunities for
questions at the Commission meeting on May 12, 2020.
The District’s Annual Report consists of the following four parts:
1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) – This gives a high-level overview of
the financial statements, discussing changes from the previous year. The intent is to give a
broad, overview of any changes and trends.
2. Financial Statements – These statements are at a combined District level. Financial
statements broken out per utility are under Note 11 in the following section. The statements
include the Statement of Net position (Balance Sheet), Statement of Revenue, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position (Income Statement), and the Statement of Cash Flows.
3. Notes to Financial Statements – This is where different sections and activities of the
District are discussed and explained in detail. For example, Note 7 lists the outstanding
long-term debt, the principal paid during the year and schedules of upcoming payments.
Most of the Notes have prescribed guidelines by the SAO, but still give valuable, detailed
information.
4. Required Supplemental Schedules – This section contains required schedules in the SAO
formats.
While the Annual Report provides extensive information, it does not provide a budget to actual
comparison of results. For that reason, the following, high-level statement was prepared to provide
additional information/comparison:
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2019
1
2
3
4
5

6
7
8

9
10

REVENUE
Service Revenues - Industrial Water
Service Revenues - Irrigation
Service Revenues - Grandview Utility
Service Revenues - Electric Utility
Misc Revenue
TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENSES
Labor & Benefits
O&M Expenses
Administration Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES
BUSINESS SERVICES/GRANTS
Business Service Revenue
Business Serivce Expenses
TOTAL BUSINESS SERVICES

11 INCOME (LOSS) BUDGET

12
13

CAPITAL COSTS
Debt Service
Transfers for Capital Projects
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS

$

2018

9,119,155
85,551
252,933
2,061,564
384,890
$ 11,904,093

$

(2,881,620)
(1,323,856)
(1,695,952)
$ (5,901,428)

(2,836,381)
(1,556,532)
(1,863,971)
$ (6,256,884)

146,634
(222,372)
(75,738)

205,478
(179,547)
25,931

$
$

5,926,927

(3,451,862)
(4,100,000)
$ (7,551,862)

9,003,128
102,142
235,558
2,062,308
220,064
$ 11,623,199

$
$

5,392,247

(3,448,473)
(1,970,269)
$ (5,418,742)

Variance 20192018

%

2019 Budget

$

116,027
(16,590)
17,375
(744)
164,826
280,894

1%
-16%
7%
0%
75%
2%

$ 9,092,404
88,273
243,352
2,061,564
354,939
$ 11,840,532

$

(45,239)
232,677
168,019
355,456

2%
-15%
-9%
-6%

(2,834,490)
(1,947,400)
(1,715,563)
$ (6,497,453)

-29%
24%

$

(58,844)
(42,826)
(101,669)

635,000
(670,000)
(35,000)

$

534,680

10%

$ 5,308,079

0%
108%
39%

(3,496,195)
(1,831,111)
$ (5,327,306)

$
$

$

(3,390)
(2,129,731)
(2,133,121)

$

Variance
Actual - Budget
$

%

$

26,751
(2,722)
9,581
29,951
63,561

0%
-3%
4%
0%
8%
1%

$

(47,130)
623,544
19,611
596,025

2%
-32%
-1%
-9%

-77%
-67%

$

(488,366)
447,628
(40,738)

$

618,848

12%

$

44,333
(2,268,889)
(2,224,556)

-1%
124%
42%

The Phillips 66 pass-through costs for power, transmission and related taxes are removed. (See Note
4 below).
The lines of the statement are numbered and are discussed in more detail below:
1) Service Revenues – Industrial Water –Total water consumption for the Cherry Point area slightly
increased between 2018 and 2019 (4,280,342,110 gallons to 4,416,769,405 gallons respectively, a
3.2% increase). The 2019 revenues for Industrial Water increased from the 2018 revenues due to a
combination of the increase in rates for 2019 and a slight increase in consumption. The 2019
actual revenues were just over budget.
2) Service Revenues – Irrigation – Water consumption for the Irrigation customers decreased 23% in
2019 compared to 2018. Irrigation revenues are highly contingent upon the amount of rainfall
during the year, therefore vary from previous years, and budget more than other services.
3) Service Revenues – Grandview Utility – Water consumption for the Grandview utility increased
by 8% in 2019 compared to 2018. The 2019 revenues for the Grandview utility were above the
2018 revenues due to the increase in consumption and the increase in rates.
4) Service Revenues – Electric Utility - This line includes Electric service revenues for District
services only (O&M, admin, labor, etc.). The pass-through revenues for BPA power,
transmission, and tax costs have been removed from this statement. The budget, 2019 and 2018
actual amounts are in line with expectations. Starting in 2017, this revenue includes the internal
charge to the Industrial Water Utility for their portion of the General Service charge.
5) Miscellaneous Revenue – This line includes any miscellaneous income including late fees, interest
income, rent, recycle income, and any income for in-house projects. For 2019, the majority of the
income came from the interest income and income from work on the Green Apple project. The
budget included reimbursement from PSE for the water meter replacement, which has not
occurred.
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6) Labor and Benefits – This includes all the labor and benefits not associated with capital projects
and extraordinary maintenance. There was only a slight increase between 2019 and 2018. The
difference between budget and 2019 costs were the over-budgeting of labor to capital projects.
7) O & M Expenses– This line includes all operating costs, including power costs for the water
treatment plants, but excluding power costs passed through to Phillips 66. The 2019 actual costs
of $1,324,000 resulted in an overall decrease from 2018 of $233,000, with the largest difference in
Extraordinary Maintenance. In 2018, the District experienced the Douglas road water line break,
which resulted in an initial, unplanned cost of over $357,000. The difference between 2019 and
the budgeted amount is again in Extraordinary Maintenance. The Douglas Road Vault upgrades
and D station upgrades were delayed.
8) Administration Expenses – This category encompasses all the overhead, administrative type of
expenses. 2019 expenses decreased $168,000 from 2018, with the largest decrease in outside
services in power regulation charges. In 2018, the District paid a one-time, construction cost share
to connect the District with BPA fiber. The decrease in 2019 was partially offset by an increase in
engineering costs. The 2019 administration expenses were slightly under budget partially due to
the election cost being included in 2018 instead of 2019.
9) Business Service Revenue – This line includes all of the income from what we term Business
Services. The majority of the revenue is from grants the District participates in, but can include
outside consulting. 2019 income came from the 2-year pilot project with the Department of
Health, the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife grant for a groundwater study, and
from the Federal Bureau of Reclamation. Depending on the grant activity, this amount will
fluctuate widely between years. The budget included $500,000 for a mitigation study on
California creek, which did not occur in 2019.
10) Business Service Expenses – This line includes the corresponding expenses associated with the
Business Services. The difference between the Revenue and Expenses is usually due to the
timing of reimbursement.
11) Income (Loss) Budget – This line is the result of revenues minus expenses, but is not a direct
reflection of the Operating Income on the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund
Net Position. The Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position reflects
GAAP accounting and non-cash expenses. Line 11 corresponds to the budget and does not
include non-cash expenses.
12) Debt Service – This is the debt service paid annually. The budget included a payment on the
EDI loan. We did not receive the EDI loan proceeds until 2019, so the first payment will be due
in 2020.
13) Capital Transfers – This is the amount transferred over to the Capital funds for existing and
future capital projects. The amount is more than budgeted since there were excess funds in the
Operating account.
Fiscal Impact: None.
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Necessity: Pursuant to RCW 43.09.230, the District is required to file with the State auditor a local
government financial report within one hundred and fifty (150) days of the close of the fiscal year,
May 31, 2020. This requires that the District Commission take such action to approve the financial
reports sufficiently in advance of that deadline to allow the District staff to finalize and file said
reports prior to the expiration of that deadline. Governor Inslee’s COVID-19 Proclamation Orders
suspending this deadline imposed in RCW 43. 09.230 expires on May 4th, 2020. Accordingly, the
May 12, 2020 meeting is the last available meeting during which these reports can be approved by
the Commission prior to the current date of expiration of the Governor’s orders. (See Proclamation
Nos 20-34, 20-05, and 20-25.1).
Routine: Pursuant to RCW 43. 09.230, the District Commission is required to approve its local
government financial report within one hundred and fifty (150) days of the close of the fiscal year.
The approval of the local government financial report is brought before the Commission each spring
for the preceding year as required by state law.
Recommended Action: ACCEPT THE DISTRICT’S 2019 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
AND AUTHORIZE THE SUBMITAL TO THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE.
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ANNUAL REPORT

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County

MCAG No. 1806

Submitted pursuant to RCW 43.09.230
To the
WASHINGTON STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED December 31, 2019

GOVERNMENT INFORMATION:
Official Mailing Address:

PO Box 2308, Ferndale, WA 98248

Official Web Site Address:

www.pudwhatcom.org

Official E-mail Address:

info@pudwhatcom.org

Official Phone Number:

(360) 384-4288

PREPARER INFORMATION and CERTIFICATION:
Preparer Name and Title:

Annette Smith, Director of Finance

Contact Phone Number:

(360) 384-4288 x11

Contact E-mail Address:

annettesmith@pudwhatcom.org

I certify the 12th day of May 2020 that annual report information is complete, accurate and in conformity with the
Budgeting, Accounting and Reporting Systems Manual, to the best of my knowledge and belief, having reviewed
this information and taken all appropriate steps in order to provide such certification. I acknowledge and
understand our responsibility for the design and implementation of controls to prevent and detect fraud. Finally,
I acknowledge and understand our responsibility for immediately submitting corrected annual report information
if any errors or an omission in such information is subsequently identified.

Audit Contact or Preparer Signature:
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PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The District's Annual Financial Report consists of the following four parts:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) (this section)
Financial statements
Notes to the financial statements
Required supplemental information

The financial statements include a statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position, statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements.
The statement of net position provides a record of the assets and liabilities of the District at the close of the year. It
provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and obligations to District
creditors (liabilities). An elimination column is included to remove from the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Change in Net Assets amounts owing within the District. It provides a basis for evaluating the capital structure of the
District and assessing its liquidity and financial flexibility.
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the results of the District's business activities
for an annual period of time. The information contained in this statement can be used to determine whether the District
is successfully recovering its costs through user fees and other charges, and to evaluate profitability and credit
worthiness.
The statement of cash flows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operating,
financing, and investing activities for a year’s period of time.
The notes to the financial statements provide information regarding the District's significant accounting policies and
significant account balances and activities.
All District funds are operated as individual enterprise funds and collectively represent the financial operation of the
District. A condensed comparative Statement of Net Position is shown below:
2019
ASSETS
Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets (Net)
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

$

2018

$

12,237,063 $
3,660,097
45,028,590
60,925,749 $

11,582,416
3,681,952
43,342,846
58,607,214

$

3,715,682
21,650,649
25,366,332 $

4,371,841
22,729,963
27,101,804

$

22,465,845
3,716,258
9,377,314
35,559,417 $

19,227,119
3,737,372
52,350
8,488,569
31,505,410

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Debt Service

Restricted for Miscellaneous Reserves
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
A condensed comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the District is shown
below:
2019
2018
REVENUES
Operating Revenue
$ 21,113,160 $ 20,793,410
Nonoperating Revenue
611,255
613,526
TOTAL REVENUE
$ 21,724,415 $ 21,406,936

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses
Nonoperating Expenses
TOTAL EXPENSES

17,117,981
1,352,428
$ 18,470,408

17,268,461
1,403,790
$ 18,672,251

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND
SPECIAL ITEMS

$ 3,254,007

$ 2,734,686

Capital Contributions
Special / Extraordinary Items
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

800,000
$ 4,054,007

$ 2,734,686

BEGINNING NET POSITION
ENDING NET POSITION

$ 31,505,410
$ 35,559,417

$ 28,770,725
$ 31,505,410

FINANCIAL POSITION
Analysis of Changes in Total Net Position from 2018-2019
For the twelve months ending December 31, 2019, the total net position of the District increased by approximately
$4,054,000 or 12.9%. Total assets increased by $2,319,000 and total liabilities decreased by $1,735,000 producing a
net increase in net position.
The major components contributing to the increase in assets were an increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents of
$709,000 from timing of payments, an increase in Net Receivables of $20,000 due primarily to timing of customer
payments, a decrease of $73,000 in Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents due to a decrease in LUD assessments
received as compared to debt payments, a decrease in Bond Issue costs due to standard amortization of $22,000 and
an increase in Total Capital Assets Net of Depreciation of $1,686,000.
The major components of the decrease in total liabilities included a decrease in Accounts Payables of $113,000 due
to timing of payments, an increase of $23,000 in Accrued Employee Payable due to adjustments in the liability for
vacation and sick leave payouts and the Teamster Withdrawal Liability, a decrease in the Accrued Insurance Claims
Reserve of $3,000, an increase in Utility Taxes of $5,000, an increase of $86,000 in Contractor Retainage, an increase
in Deposits and Other Payables of $7,000, and a net decrease in the bonds principal and interest payable of $1,740,000
due to debt service payments.
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Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Analysis of changes in Revenue, Expenses, and change in Net Position for 2018-2019
Income before Contributions, and Extraordinary Items increased from $2,735,000 in 2018 to $3,254,000 in 2019 (a
$519,000 increase). Operating Revenue increased by $320,000 due to a combination of rate increases and an increase
in usage. Operating expenses decreased by $150,000. Non-operating Revenue decreased by $2,000. Non-operating
Expenses reflected an overall decrease of $51,000, resulting primarily from a decrease in interest expense.
CAPITAL ASSETS
Analysis of Changes in Capital Assets from 2018-2019
During 2019, total capital assets increased by $1,686,000 and were comprised of an overall increase in non-depreciated
assets, including construction-work-in-progress for $264,000 ($93,000 of construction-work-in-progress was
expensed during 2019 mainly consisting of labor and equipment which did not qualify for capitalization), and the
following change in capital assets: the Industrial Water Utility increased by $2,489,000, the Grandview Water Utility
stayed constant, the Electric Utility increased by $255,000, a $174,000 increase for general utility and office assets
accounted for in the Internal Services Fund and an increase in accumulated depreciation of $1,497,000. SEE NOTE
4.
LONG-TERM DEBT
Analysis of Changes in Long-Term Debt from 2018-2019
During 2019, the District’s indebtedness for the 2010 LTGO bonds was reduced by $1,415,000, the 2012 LTGO bond
issue was reduced by $675,000, the District’s indebtedness for the 2013 LTGO bonds was reduced by $270,000, the
District’s indebtedness for the 2016 LTGO bonds reduced by $146,000, and the District borrowed $800,000 from the
Whatcom County Economic Development Investment Program for a total overall long-term debt reduction of
$1,706,000. SEE NOTE 7.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
The basic financial statements, notes and management discussion and analysis are designed to provide a general
overview of the District’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report should be
directed to the Director of Finance of the Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County, PO Box 2308, Ferndale,
WA 98248.
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Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2019

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash
Whatcom County Investment Pool
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents
Receivables (Net):
Customers
Other
Total Accounts Receivables (Net)
Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents
Prepayments
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

$

$

14,646
10,178,362
10,193,008
1,737,571
10,977
1,748,548
253,836
41,670
12,237,063

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Bond Issue Costs
Restricted Assets
Investments - Bond Reserves
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land
Easements
Construction in Progress
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings & Structures
Machinery & Equipment
Intangible
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets (Net)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

197,675
3,462,423
108,000
56,260
653,220

$

25,609,649
38,523,038
866,000
(20,787,578)
45,028,590
48,688,687

$

60,925,749

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2019

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Employee Payable
Accrued Insurance Claims Reserve
Accrued Utility Taxes
Contractor Retainage
Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable
2010 LTGO Series A&B Bonds Principal - Current
2010 LTGO Series A&B Interest
2012 LTGO Series A&B Bonds Principal - Current
2012 LTGO Series A&B Interest
2013 LTGO Bond Principal - Current
2013 LTGO Bond Interest
2016 LTGO Bond Principal - Current
2016 LTGO Bond Interest
2019 EDI Loan Principal - Current
2019 EDI Loan Interest
Deposits & Other Payables
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

$

$

805,988
454,395
57,336
322,018
131,225
1,035,000
63,504
360,000
5,282
275,000
14,550
145,763
2,031
36,332
667
6,590
3,715,682

NON-CURRENT LIABILTIES

Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable
2010 LTGO Series A&B Bonds Principal

2012 LTGO Bond Principal
2013 LTGO Bond Principal
2016 LTGO Bond Principal
2019 EDI Loan Principal
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILTIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

13,786,911
1,547,684
4,532,048
1,020,339
763,668
$ 21,650,649
$ 25,366,332

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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22,465,845
3,716,258
9,377,314
$ 35,559,417
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Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
OPERATING REVENUE
Utility Sales and Service Revenues
Other Operating Revenue
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

$
$

21,043,527
69,633
21,113,160

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations:
Purchased Power
Water Purification
Taxes / Process / Delivery Costs
General Operations
Maintenance
Administration:
General Administration
Planning and Development Expense
Depreciation Expense
Utility Tax Expense
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

$

2,581,785
113,602
1,692,228
589,611
17,117,981

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

$

3,995,180

NONOPERATING REVENUE
Lease Income
Grant Revenue
Assessment Income
Interest Income
Interest Fees
Connection Fee
Penalties
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE

9,324,770
259,659
580,304
834,189
1,141,832

23,776
146,634
144,705
300,886
(9,404)
4,659
611,255

$

NONOPERATING EXPENSE
Interest Expense
Amortization
Grant Expenses
Loss (Gain) on Property Disposal
TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSE

$

1,084,823
21,855
222,372
23,377
1,352,428

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS,
AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

$

3,254,007

Capital Contributions (Connection Charges)
Special / Extraordinary Items

800,000
-

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

$

4,054,007

TOTAL NET POSITION - JANUARY 1st

$

31,505,410

TOTAL NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31st

$

35,559,417

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County
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Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees (Labor only)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments Received (Paid) for Non-operating work
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Capital Debt
Purchase of Capital Assets
Principal paid on Capital Debt
Interest paid on Capital Debt
Capital Contributions
Assessments Received for 2007 & 2016 debt payments
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

$

21,145,705
(13,456,622)
(2,016,283)

$

5,672,800

(47,304)
$

(47,304)

$

800,000
(3,401,350)
(2,505,763)
(1,119,280)
800,000
144,705

$

(5,281,688)

$

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

635,289

BALANCE BEGINNING OF YEAR
BALANCE END OF YEAR
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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291,481
291,481

13,273,978
$

13,909,267
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Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss)

$

3,995,180

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
Cash Provided (Used) by operating activities:
Depreciation

1,692,228

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Net Accounts Receivable
Decrease (Increase) in Prepayments
Increase (Decrease) in Account Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Employee Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Insurance Claims Reserve
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Utility Taxes
Increase (Decrease) in Contractor Retainage
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits & Other Payables
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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(19,605)
248
(112,542)
22,907
(2,938)
4,684
86,047
6,590
$

5,672,800

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County (“District”) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described below (including identification of those
policies, which result in material departures from generally accepted accounting principles):
A.

Reporting Entity
Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County was incorporated in 1937 and operates under the laws of the state
of Washington, RCW Chapter 54, applicable to a municipal corporation governed by an elected three-member
board.
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements represent the entire District. The
District has no component units.

B.

Basis of Presentation
The District reports the following major enterprise funds: Industrial Water Utility which serves the heavy
industries located in the Cherry Point region along with irrigation customers located adjacent to the water
transmission lines, the Grandview Utility which serves the light industrial customers in the Grandview service
area, and the Electric Utility which serves our one external electric customer, Phillips 66, along with our two water
treatment plants.
As a rule, the effect of the interfund activity has been eliminated for the district-wide financial statements.
The Internal service fund accounts for the administrative, general expenses not identified with one specific fund.
These expenditures are allocated to the enterprise funds based on the amount of operating labor hours. Starting in
2019, these expenses were allocated across all of the utilities, including the Grandview Utility.

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting
The statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and full-accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when liability is incurred regardless of the timing
of the cash flows.
The District distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses from non-operating ones. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
District’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are charges to customers
for water delivery and electric service. The District also recognizes as operating revenue some miscellaneous
income. Operating expenses for the District include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
planning and business development expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D.

Budgetary Information
1.

Scope of Budget

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all funds on the cash basis of accounting. Budgets for debt service
and capital project funds are adopted at the level of the individual debt issue or project and for fiscal periods that
correspond to the lives of debt issues or projects.
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Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

2.

Amending the Budget

The General Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however,
the commission must approve any revisions that alter the total expenditures of a fund, or that affect the number of
authorized employee positions or salary ranges.
E.

Assets, Liabilities, Fund Balance, Net Position
1.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
It is the District’s policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses. At December 31, 2019, the treasurer was
holding $10,178,362 in short-term residual investments of surplus cash. This amount is classified on the
balance sheet as Cash and Cash Equivalents in various funds. The interest on these investments is prorated
to the various funds based on existing balances.
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
The cash referenced on the Statement of Cash Flows will include Cash & Cash Equivalents, Restricted
Cash & Cash Equivalents, and the Restricted Investments under Non-current assets.

2.

Investments See Note 3, Deposits and Investments.

3.

Receivables
Customer accounts receivable consist of amounts owed from private individuals or organizations for
goods and services including amounts owed for which billings have not been prepared.

4.

Amounts Due to and from Other Funds and Governments, Interfund Loans and Advances Receivable
Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as interfund loans receivable/payable. All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as due to/from other funds. A separate schedule of interfund loans receivable
and payable is furnished in Note 9, Interfund Balances and Transfers.

5.

Restricted Assets and Liabilities
These accounts contain resources for debt service. Specific debt service reserve requirements are
described in Note 7, Long Term Debt.
The restricted assets of the enterprise funds are composed of the following:

RESTRICTED RESERVE BALANCES
Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents
LUD #2 Cash & Investments
Bond Reserves
2010 LTGO Series A&B Bond Reserve
2012 LTGO Bond Reserve
2013 LTGO Bond Reserve
Total Bond Reserves
TOTAL RESTRICTED RESERVE BALANCES

PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County

2019

$

253,836

$

$

2,249,713
759,910
452,800
3,462,423

$

3,716,258

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

6.

Capital Assets See Note 4, Capital Assets.
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable fund. The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of 1 year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition
value at the date of donation.
Costs for additions or improvements to capital assets are capitalized when they increase the effectiveness
or efficiency of the asset.
The costs for normal maintenance and repairs are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects or major components of the
project are constructed.
Property, plant, and equipment of the District, is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

ASSET
Buildings & Structures
Vehicles
Machinery & Equipment
Computer Hardware & Software
Intangible
7.

YEARS
5-60
3-10
3-60
2-20
20

Compensated Absences
Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and
floaters (in lieu of holidays). All leave is accrued when incurred. All leave is paid at the employee’s
current rate of pay when used. Since the timing of when the Vacation, Holiday or Sick leave will be taken
is unknown, but is possible to be taken within a year, the liability is reflected under Current Liabilities as
Accrued Employee Payable. The General Manager’s compensated absences are separately negotiated as
part of his employment contract.
Vacation pay may be carried over at year-end at a balance not greater than 80 hours plus the employee’s
current annual accrual. Unused vacation is payable upon resignation, retirement, termination without
cause, or death. Union employees may cash out up to 40 hours per year of accumulated vacation.
Sick Leave may be accumulated up to a total of 1080 hours for non-union employees and 1136 hours for
union employees, and is not convertible. Upon termination of employment, unused sick leave is
compensated at 25% of accrued benefit for non-union, 50% for union. Union employees may cash out in
December any hours accrued over 1040 hours. If a non-union employee dies while currently employed at
the District, sick leave is compensated at 100%
Floating Holidays may be used at any time once accrued for leave. Non-union employees earn 12 floaters
per year. Union employees earn 100 hours of floaters each year. Unused floaters must be cashed-out at
the end of the year and cannot be carried forward to the next fiscal year.

8.

Pensions
The District carries no liability for pensions. Union employees are covered under the Teamster pension
and the non-union employees have access to contributing to investments funds through Mass Mutual, a
457 plan. The District does not take part in the PERS retirement system. See Note 10, Pension Plan.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

9.

Other Accrued Liabilities
These accounts consist of Accrued Wages, Accrued Employee Benefits, Accrued Insurance Claims
Reserve, Accrued Utility Taxes, Deposits and Contractor Retainage.

10.

Long-Term Debt See Note 7, Long-Term Debt.

NOTE 2 – ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING CHANGES
2019
1.

2.

2018
1.

2.

INTERNAL – Towards the end of 2019, the SAO audit of our 2017 and 2018 annual reports occurred.
One recommendation was to move the investments we have with the Whatcom County Treasurer, which
previously had been listed as investments, up under Cash and Cash Equivalents due to their liquidity.
INTERNAL – Previously, only certain general expenses from the Internal Services fund were allocated
to the Grandview utility. Starting in 2019, all general expenses are allocated to the three utilities
(Industrial Water, Grandview, and Electric) based on O&M hours.
GASB 89 Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the end of a construction period – Although the
District is not currently accruing interest on any construction project, it is likely to be applicable in the
near future.
INTERNAL – Schedules 1, 9, 15, and 21 were removed from the end of the Annual Report. They are
still reported to the State Auditor’s office. An additional liability was added to reflect the amount owed if
the District withdrew from the Teamsters Union.

NOTE 3  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A.

Deposits
Cash on hand at December 31, 2019 was $13,909,267. The carrying amount of the District’s deposits was
$13,909,267, and the bank balance was the same.
The District’s deposits are entirely covered by Federal depository insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held in a
multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Whatcom County Investment Pool (WCIP)
pursuant to RCW 39.58.
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Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

B.

Investments
The agent for the District’s investments is the Whatcom County Treasurer’s Office and all investments are held in
the Whatcom County Investment Pool [WCIP].
Investments in Whatcom County Investment Pool [WCIP]
The District is a participant in the WCIP, an external investment pool. The District reports its investment in the
Pool at the amortized cost, which is the same as the value of the Pool per share. The responsibility for managing
the pool resides with the County Treasurer. The Pool is established from the RCW 36.29, which authorizes the
County Treasurer to invest the funds of participants. The County’s investment policy is established by the
Administrative Finance Committee, consisting of the Treasurer as Chairman, the Auditor as Secretary, and the
Chair of the County Council. The County external investment pool does not have a credit rating and had a weighted
average maturity of 1.08 years as of December 31, 2019. Short-term Whatcom County Investment Pool funds are
classified as Cash and Cash Equivalents on the Statement of Net Position. Per the Whatcom County guidelines, a
90 day advanced notice must be given to the county for any withdrawal that exceeds $5 million. If the District
should choose to close their accounts, the County Treasurer will develop a reasonable distribution schedule for the
withdrawal of the balance of the funds. Regardless of the size of the balance, all monies shall be distributed back
to the District within one year.
As of December 31, 2019, the District had the following investments in the WCIP:

Maturities

2019
Amortized Cost

INVESTMENTS
Short-Term Investments
Whatcom County Investment Pool

$ 10,446,844

$ 10,446,844

Non-Current
Whatcom County Investment Pool

3,462,423

3,462,423

$ 13,909,267

$ 13,909,267

TOTAL INVESTMENTS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ending December 31, 2019 was as follows:
2019
Beginning Balance
CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING DEPRECIATED
LAND
Industrial Water Utility
TOTAL LAND
EASEMENTS
Industrial Water Utility
TOTAL EASEMENTS

2019
Ending Balance

$

108,000
108,000

$

-

$

-

$

108,000
108,000

$

-

$

56,260
56,260

$

-

$

56,260
56,260

CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS
Industrial Water Utility
Grandview Potable Water Utility
Electric Utility
General Utility & Office (Internal Services Utility)
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRSS
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS NOT BEING DEPRECIATED

2019 Activity
Increase
Decrease

205,941
198,107
41,561
445,609
$

553,609

2,432,591
753,117
256,940
3,442,647
$

3,498,907

(2,638,532)
(328,837)
(267,667)
(3,235,036)
$

(3,235,036)

622,387
30,833
653,220
$

817,480

CAPITAL ASSETS BEING DEPRECIATED
BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES
Industrial Water Utility
Grandview Water Utility
Electric Utility
General Utility & Office (Internal Services Utility)
TOTAL BUILDINGS & STRUCTURES

17,330,348
93,807
4,457,485
1,561,095
23,442,735

2,156,916
(1)
10,000
2,166,915

MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT
Industrial Water Utility
Grandview Water Utility
Electric Utility
General Utility & Office (Internal Services Utility)
TOTAL MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

20,027,689
3,131,080
12,207,315
2,405,001
37,771,086

384,371
328,838
257,354
970,563

866,000
866,000

-

INTANGIBLE
Industrial Water Utility
TOTAL INTANGIBLE

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS BEING DEPRECIATED

$

LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FOR:
Buildings & Structures
Machinery & Equipment
Intangible
TOTAL ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS BEING DEPRECIATED (NET)
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET
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62,079,820

$

(6,352,049)
(12,418,934)
(519,600)
(19,290,583)

3,137,478

-

19,487,264
93,807
4,457,484
1,571,095
25,609,649

(51,965)
(73,486)
(93,159)
(218,611)

20,360,096
3,131,080
12,462,667
2,569,196
38,523,038

-

$

(462,103)
(1,186,825)
(43,300)
(1,692,227)

(218,611)

866,000
866,000

$

195,233
195,233

64,998,688

(6,814,153)
(13,410,525)
(562,900)
(20,787,578)

$

42,789,237

$

1,445,251

$

(23,377)

$

44,211,109

$

43,342,846

$

4,944,158

$

(3,258,414)

$

45,028,590

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
Initial depreciation on utility plant is typically recorded in the year subsequent to capitalization of the asset. If the project
spans multiple years, and a portion can be deemed completed and placed into use, that portion will be capitalized and
depreciation will begin in the subsequent year, regardless if the entire project is complete.
Preliminary costs incurred for proposed projects are deferred pending construction of the facility. Costs relating to projects
ultimately constructed are capitalized; charges that relate to abandoned projects are expensed. The District expensed
$92,700 in CWIP projects in 2019.
NOTE 5 - CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS
A.

Construction Commitments
The District has active construction projects as of December 31, 2019. The projects include:

2019
District
Capital
Project #
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
Server Back-up Power
Ferndale Substation build

Spent Through
12/31/19
30,833
622,387

IS18
E22

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Remaining
Commitment

$

30,000
4,000,000

653,220

$

4,030,000

Of the Remaining Commitment balance of $4,030,000, the District will be required to raise $0 in future
financing.
B.

Other Commitments
At year-end, the District commitments with contractors are as follows:

PROJECT
BKI-WO1-Electric system standards
BKI-WO2-Substation Protective Relay Settings
BKI-WO4-Ferndale Pump Substation Design
BKI-WO7-Standby Generator for Server Room
BKI-WO8-115kv Electric - Cherry Point
BKI-WO9-Electric on-call
BKI-WO10-P66 mis-operation Invest
PSE-WO1-Alcoa Property Easement
PSE-WO3-On Call Services
PSE-WO4-P2 Survey E Sediment Pond
PSE-WO5-P1 Easements
RH2-WO15-Drought Contingency

SPENT TO
REMAINING
DATE
COMMITMENT
$ 17,948 $
10,052
5,195
4,605
360,758
440,885
10,809
8,391
10,895
12,456
2,907
12,093
11,162
8,839
98,630
1,320
18,680
1,339
4,996
4,658
2,323
15,000
5,000
$ 441,990
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The District currently has a power supply contract with the Bonneville Power Administration (“BPA”) that covers
its entire electric load requirements. The contract with BPA runs through September 30, 2028.
In August 2008, the District approved a new Network Transmission Agreement (“NT Agreement”) with BPA,
which provides for an extension of the term of the NT Agreement through August 31, 2038 and assures sufficient
transmission capacity to accommodate both the District’s existing power supply requirements moved over BPA’s
transmission system and future electric load growth.
In 2017, the District entered in to an agreement with BPA related to services BPA would provide to the District to
assure compliance with the NERC electric system reliability standards associated with the Transmission Operator
function (“TOP”). During the 4th quarter of 2017, the District entered into contract negotiations with BPA related
to an agreement related to services BPA would provide to the District to support the District’s compliance with
NERC electric system reliability standards related to the Transmission Planner function (“TP”). The agreement
was completed and executed on May 22, 2018.
NOTE 6 SHORT-TERM DEBT
The District had no short-term debt obligations in 2019.
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT
A.

Long-Term Debt
The District issues general obligation and revenue bonds to finance the acquisition or construction of expanded
facilities and replacement of aging infrastructure. Bonded indebtedness has also been entered into (currently and
in prior years) to advance refund several general obligation and revenue bonds. General obligation bonds have
been issued for business-type activities and are being repaid from the applicable resources.
General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:
Purpose
2010 LTGO Series A - Refunded 1999 Water Revenue Bonds
2010 LTGO Series B -Funded Water Plant 2 rebuild and the
purchase of two substations
2012 LTGO - Refunded the 2004 LTGO bonds
2013 LTGO - Funding to complete the Water Plant 2 rebuild
2016 LTGO - Advanced refunded 2007 Water Revenue Bonds

PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County

Maturity
Range

Interest
Rate

Original
Amount

Amount of
Installment

2011-2019

4.88% $ 2,660,000

$

430,000

2011-2030
2012-2024
2014-2032
2018-2027

4.88%
2.60%
2.66%
2.09%

$
$
$
$

985,000
675,000
270,000
145,763

$ 20,980,000
$ 5,980,000
$ 6,025,000
$ 1,457,628

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Ending December 31:

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2029
2030-2032
TOTAL

2010 LTGO BONDS
PRINCIPAL

INTEREST

1,035,000
1,090,000
1,145,000
1,200,000
1,260,000
7,345,000
1,710,000
$ 14,785,000

762,050
710,300
655,800
598,550
538,550
1,648,725
89,775
$ 5,003,750

2012 LTGO BONDS

2013 LTGO BONDS

PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL
360,000
365,000
380,000
395,000
410,000

63,388
53,488
42,538
29,998
15,580

$ 1,910,000

$ 204,990

275,000
285,000
295,000
305,000
315,000
1,780,000
1,250,000
$ 4,505,000

INTEREST
174,600
166,350
157,800
146,000
133,800
469,200
101,400
$ 1,349,150

2016 LTGO BONDS
PRINCIPAL INTEREST
145,763
145,763
145,763
145,763
145,763
437,287

24,372
21,325
18,279
15,232
12,186
18,279

$ 1,166,102

$ 109,672

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for debt from direct borrowings and direct placement are as
follows:

Year Ending
December 31:

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
TOTAL

2019 EDI LOAN
PRINCIPAL

INTEREST

36,332
36,696
37,063
37,433
37,807
194,785
204,721
215,164
800,000

8,000
7,637
7,270
6,899
6,525
26,877
16,941
6,498
86,645

$

$

In proprietary funds, unamortized debt issue costs for insurance are recorded as an asset and bond are displayed
net of premium or discount; annual interest expense is decreased by amortization of debt premium and increased
by the amortization of the debt issue costs and discount.
At December 31, 2019, restricted assets in proprietary funds contain $3,716,258 in reserves as required by bond
indentures.
The Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County has pledged future Grandview assessment revenue to repay
$2,845,000 in revenue bonds issued in November 2007. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the
Grandview line extension. The 2007 bonds were advanced refunded in 2016 with $1,457,628 of LTGO bonds.
The bonds are payable from Grandview LUD #2 assessment revenues and revenues of the water system and are
payable through 2027. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $1,275,774. Principal
and interest paid for the current year and total Grandview assessment revenue were $173,181and $144,705
respectively.

PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
NOTE 8 – RESTRICTED COMPONENT OF NET POSITION
The District’s statement of net position reports $3,716,258 of restricted component of net position for debt service, of which
everything is restricted by enabling legislation.
NOTE 9 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS
A.

Interfund Balances
Interfund balances at December 31, 2019 were as follows:

Due From

Due To

Industrial
Water
Industrial Water
Grandview
Electric
Alcoa Fund
Internal Service
Total

1,361,016
$ 1,361,016

Grandview
$ 805,683

13,446
$ 819,128

Alcoa
Fund

Electric

162,122
573,450
$ 735,571

$

Internal
Service
$ 2,875,609
3,664
1,045,241
215,368
-

Total
$ 3,681,292
3,664
1,045,241
377,490
1,947,912

$ 4,139,882

The interfund balances are a result of four categories. The first two, Capital, including depreciation, and Employee
Payable, are allocations between the Internal Services account to the active utilities. The Interfund Capital spreads
the net capital assets from the Internal Services to the other utilities. The Interfund Employee Payable spreads the
liability for accrued employee vacation, sick time, and Teamster withdrawal to the appropriate utilities. Neither
of these are expected to be paid back, but adjusted to the new balances annually.
The third category is the loan between the Grandview and Industrial Water utility for the line connection between
the Industrial water system and the Grandview fire system. 2018 was the start of this interfund loan. Currently,
the payback is scheduled over 30 years. The Grandview Utility has experienced growth recently and any
unbudgeted growth will be balanced with reducing the payback time and keeping rates low. The line will remain
an asset of the Industrial Water utility, but since it was constructed due to a need at Grandview, the Grandview
utility will be paying back the Industrial Water utility. The last category is a result of a loan between the Alcoa
Escrow fund and the Electric Utility. This is expected to be paid back within the next five years.
B.

Interfund Transfers
Interfund transfers at December 31, 2019 were as follows:

Transfer From

Transfer To

Industrial
Water
Industrial Water
Grandview
Electric
Alcoa Fund
Internal Service
Total

Grandview

Alcoa
Fund

Electric

Internal
Service

Total
$

(746,076)
602,643

(143,432)

-

-

-

(746,076)
602,643
-

-

The transfers all dealt with one utility paying back another utility for fixed assets or bond costs. In 2019, there
were three transfers:
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$746,076 the 2019 amount owed from the Grandview utility to the Industrial Water utility for the
construction of the Vista Road water line. This amount does not match the balance due, due to 2018
activity and the annual payment of $60,000.
$413,559 was transferred for the Industrial Water’s portion of Electric construction projects
$189,084 was transferred from Industrial Water to Electric for a portion of Electric’s bond payment,
which paid for an asset the Industrial Water utility uses.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS
The District’s employees do not participate in any of the plans of the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems.
A.

Non-union
In lieu of the state retirement program, the District offers its non-union employees an optional deferred
compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457. This plan was adopted in 1989.
An Administrative Service Agreement was established with Mass Mutual Retirement Services to provide
individual investment choices for participants with detailed accounting to both the participants and the District.
The District approves a contribution percentage of gross earnings annually to be paid in addition to gross earnings
to eligible employees. The 2019 rate of District contribution to the employee is 8.20% of gross earnings.
Employees may or may not elect to contribute any portion up to the allowable limit to the Mass Mutual plan. The
Plan, available to eligible employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. The
District has neither fiduciary responsibility nor liability for the Plan and accordingly no records are reflected on
the Districts accounts.

B.

Union
At year-end, the District’s union employees (one chief water operator and five water operator positions) were
eligible to be covered under the collective bargaining agreement with Teamsters Union Local No. 231 of Whatcom
County’s pension plan. This plan is a multiemployer, defined benefit pension plan. Financial statements for the
Pension plan may be found here: http://www.wctpension.org/forms-documents-webcasts/plan-documents. This
link also connects to the Summary Plan Description that describes the benefits available. Benefits include pension,
disability, and survivor benefits. The current contract, outlining the District’s responsibilities with Teamsters, is
scheduled to expire at the end of 2021 and will be renegotiated. Payment is made to the Pension plan monthly for
each of the union employees.
The contributions to the plan are based on the collective-bargaining agreement. During 2019, the District
contributed $6.00 per qualified hour, per employee, up to a maximum of 2080 hours ($12,480) per year per
employee. No minimum contribution is required to be paid if no qualified hours are worked. If the District was
to exit the plan, an ‘unfunded withdrawal liability’ could be required. The estimated withdrawal liability for the
District at the end of 2019 is $2,964. The liability is on the previous 5 years of contributions compared to the fund
total. This liability was added to the District’s statements starting in 2018. The employees do not contribute to
this plan. The last ten years of contribution rates per qualified hour are as follows:

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County

$ 4.40
$ 4.50
$ 4.75
$ 5.00
$ 5.25

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

$ 5.50
$ 5.50
$ 5.50
$ 5.75
$ 6.00

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

NOTE 11  SEGMENT INFORMATION
The District operated four proprietary segments and an Internal Services Fund in 2019. The following changes occurred in
the District’s segments during 2019:
A.

INDUSTRIAL WATER UTILITY
Routine maintenance projects on Water Treatments Plants #1 and #2 are ongoing for the entire water system
facilities including IT and SCADA projects. In 2019, the project to extend a line between the Industrial water
system at Aldergrove to the Grandview fire system was completed. The project was funded with a combination
of an $800,000 grant and $800,000 loan, both coming from the Whatcom County Economic Development
Investment Program. The balance of the project was funded internally from rate revenue. Water consumption was
just over 2018 consumption.

B.

GRANDVIEW WATER UTILITY
The District finished the work on extending the Industrial water system waterline from a connection on the
Aldergrove transmission line to the Grandview fire system. Water consumption was slightly over 2018.

C.

ELECTRIC UTILITY
The Electric Utility continues to make electric system improvements designed to assure reliability of electric
service to the District’s water treatment plants and to its retail electric customer. In 2019, the District replaced pole
structures and continued the yearly routine maintenance. The District worked with engineers to plan the
replacement of the Ferndale substation, located at Water Treatment Plant #1. Construction was planned to start in
2019, but due to permitting delays, is scheduled for 2020. Starting in 2017, a portion of the Electric General
Services fee was allocated to the Industrial Water utility in order to cover a pro-rated share of non-direct expenses
such as administrative costs. The District’s Electric Utility, besides serving our one industrial customer, also
provides power and electrician services to our Industrial Water utility.

D.

ALCOA SERVICES FUND
The Alcoa Services Fund continues to be a resource of funds for projects outside of the regular operating scope of
the District. The funds were utilized in 2019 to pay to the Port of Bellingham for a Public Fiber Strategic Plan.
May 2010 concluded the agreement with Alcoa. No future revenues besides interest income are anticipated. As of
December 31, 2019, the remaining fund balance is $253,897.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

OPERATING REVENUE
Utility Sales and Service Revenues
Other Operating Revenue
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

403

411

481

INDUSTRIAL WATER
UTILITY

GRANDVIEW
UTILITY

ELECTRIC
UTILITY

$

$

252,933
81
253,014

$ 11,671,053
67,279
$ 11,738,331

601,647
258,342
613,260
738,849

7,248
1,318
63,364
27,853

8,715,875
580,304
157,566
375,130

-

-

856,008
508,242
117,246
$ 11,310,371

$

14,625
14,625

-

$

24,512
81,780
12,761
218,835

$

-

$

(85,164)

$

2,581,785
113,602
1,692,228
589,611
17,117,981

$

34,179

$

$

(14,625)

$

-

$

-

$

3,995,180

$

144,705
14,822
184
159,710

$

5,465
(184)
5,281

$

9,204,706
2,273
9,206,979

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations:
Purchased Power
Water Purification
Taxes / Process / Delivery Costs
General Operations
Maintenance
Administration
General Administration
Planning and Development Expenses
Depreciation Expense
Utility Tax Expense
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

$

1,786,429
98,977
1,102,207
459,604
5,659,314

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

$

3,547,665

NONOPERATING REVENUE
Lease Income
Grant Revenue
Assessment Income
Interest Income
Interest Fees
Penalties
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE
NONOPERATING EXPENSE
Interest Expense
Amortization
Interfund Expense
Grant Expenses
Loss (Gain) on Property Disposal
TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSE

$

23,776
146,634
222,054
(7,442)
4,659
389,681

$

954,639
16,255
(143,432)
222,372
2,598
1,052,432
2,884,914

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS,
AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Capital Contributions
Extraordinary Items

$

ALCOA SVCS

ELIMINATION

$

$

$

(85,164)

$

$

(85,164)

$

-

-

$

-

$

-

$

27,164
1,661
746,076
774,901

$

103,020
3,939
(602,643)
20,779
(474,905)

$

-

$

-

$

(581,012)

$

959,449

$

(9,344)

$

-

800,000
-

-

3,684,914

$

NET POSITION - JANUARY 1st

$

16,577,643

$

NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31st

$

20,262,557

$

(581,012)

$

$

-

959,449

$

1,215,189

$ 13,027,781

$

634,177

$ 13,987,230

$

(9,344)

(85,164)

-

$

-

-

-

21,043,527
69,633
21,113,160

9,324,770
259,659
580,304
834,189
1,141,832

-

-

-

DISTRICT
TOTAL

-

$

$

PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County

500
INTERNAL
SERVICES FUND

58,545
(1,962)
56,583

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

The notes to financial statements are an integral party of this statement

427,961

490

$
-

$

-

23,776
146,634
144,705
300,886
(9,404)
4,659
611,255

$

1,084,823
21,855
222,372
23,377
1,352,428

$

3,254,007

-

800,000
-

$

-

$

-

$

4,054,007

640,730

$

44,067

$

-

$

31,505,410

631,386

$

44,067

$

35,559,417
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Statement of Net Position
As of December 31, 2019
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INDUSTRIAL
WATER UTILITY

GRANDVIEW
UTILITY

ELECTRIC
UTILITY

490

500

ALCOA SVC

INTERNAL
SERVICES FUND

DISTRICT
TOTAL

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash
Whatcom County Investment Pool
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents
Receivables (Net):
Customers
Other
Interfund Receivables
Interfund Transfers - Capital
Interfund Transfers - Employee
Total Accounts Receivables (Net)
Other Current Assets
Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents
Prepayments
Other
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Bond Issue Costs
Noncurrent Restricted Assets
Investments - Bond Reserves
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land
Easements
Construction in Progress
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Buildings & Structures
Machinery & Equipment
Intangible
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets (Net)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County

$

(41,143)
7,193,799
7,152,656

$

831,101
3,544
805,683
1,903,527
(302,895)
3,240,961

10,393,616

$

23,294
(805,683)
1,052
(7,386)
(788,723)

$

(30)
398,828
398,797

(136,089)

$

883,175
7,195
(162,122)
647,856
(141,150)
1,234,954

253,836
$

(18,588)
2,241,543
2,222,955

283
253,614
253,897
162,122
215,368
377,490

$

3,457,909

$

239
(2,767,802)
451,431
(2,316,133)

$

631,386

74,125
90,579
164,703

41,670
$

(2,109,760)

$

14,646
10,178,362
10,193,008
1,737,571
10,977
(0)
0
1,748,548
253,836
41,670

$ 12,237,063

159,523

13,287

24,865

-

-

197,675

2,849,655

-

612,767

-

-

3,462,423

108,000
56,260
-

-

622,387

-

30,833

108,000
56,260
653,220

$

19,487,264
20,360,096
866,000
(13,243,651)
27,633,968
30,643,146

$

41,036,763

$

93,807
3,131,080
(1,292,462)
1,932,424
1,945,711

4,457,484
12,462,667
(4,848,143)
12,694,395
$ 13,332,027

$

$

1,809,622

$ 16,789,936

$

631,386

$
$

1,571,095
2,569,196
(1,403,321)
2,767,802
2,767,802
658,043

25,609,649
38,523,038
866,000
(20,787,578)
45,028,590
$ 48,688,687
$ 60,925,749
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INDUSTRIAL
WATER UTILITY

GRANDVIEW
UTILITY

ELECTRIC
UTILITY

490

500

ALCOA SVC

INTERNAL
SERVICES FUND

$

$

DISTRICT
TOTAL

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Employee Payable
Accrued Insurance Claims Reserve
Accrued Utility Taxes
Contractor Retainage
Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable
2010 LTGO Bond Series A&B - Current
2010 LTGO Bond Series A&B - Interest
2012 LTGO Bond Series A&B - Current
2012 LTGO Bond Series A&B - Interest
2013 LTGO Bond - Current
2013 LTGO Bond - Interest
2016 LTGO Bond - Current
2016 LTGO Bond - Interest
2019 EDI Loan - Current
2019 EDI Loan - Interest
Deposits & Other Payables
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

$

96,659
2,721
5,016
38,920
57,277

$

926,053
56,820
305,968
4,502
275,000
14,550
36,332
667
1,905
1,822,390

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable
2010 LTGO Bond Series A&B Principal
2012 LTGO Bond Principal
2013 LTGO Bond Principal
2016 LTGO Bond Principal
2019 EDI Loan Principal
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION
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$

1,035
243
396
952
-

$

145,763
2,031
4,685
155,105

$

12,335,658
1,320,443
4,532,048
763,668
18,951,816

$

20,774,206

$

7,796,634
2,849,655
9,616,268
20,262,557

$

658,313
2,076
282,147
11,233

-

$

108,947
6,685
54,032
780
1,124,212

$

1,020,339
1,020,339

# $

1,451,253
227,241
1,678,494

$

-

$

$

1,175,444

$

2,802,706

$

-

$

$

766,322
253,836
(385,981)
634,177

11,135,086
612,767
2,239,377
$ 13,987,230

$

-

$

49,981
451,431
49,848
62,716
613,976

-

$

631,386
631,386

$

$

1,035,000
63,504
360,000
5,282
275,000
14,550
145,763
2,031
36,332
667
6,590
3,715,682

$

13,786,911
1,547,684
4,532,048
1,020,339
763,668
21,650,649

$

25,366,332

$

22,465,845
3,716,258
9,377,314
35,559,417

-

$

613,976

2,767,802
(2,723,736)
44,067

805,988
454,395
57,336
322,018
131,225
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Statement of Cash Flows
As of December 31, 2019
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees (Labor only)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from (to) Other Utilities
Payments Received for Non-operating work
Payments (Paid) for Non-operating work
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

411

481

490
500
BPA-ALCOA
INTERNAL
GRANDVIEW
ELECTRIC
SERVICE
ESCROW
9,197,947 $
286,866 $ 11,651,828 $
- $
9,063
(2,055,951)
(46,894)
(9,756,462)
(14,625)
(1,582,691)
(2,016,283)

INDUSTRIAL
WATER

$

$

$

7,141,997

$

$

1,895,367

$

(181,367)

(462,464)

-

(3,318,370) $

(181,367) $

(462,464) $

-

(145,763)
(27,418)

(753,117)
(477,716)
(104,433)

214,089

(3,589,911)

$ 21,145,705
(13,456,622)
(2,016,283)
$

3,914,898

$

3,914,898

$

14,984

(1,335,266) $

56,347

-

$

5,281

$

214,089

$

14,984

$

56,347

$

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

$

376,396

$

45,113

$

153,984

$

BALANCE BEGINNING OF YEAR
BALANCE END OF PERIOD

9,625,914
$ 10,002,311

$

607,521
652,633

$

2,681,739
2,835,723

$

5,281

(256,627)

(47,304)

800,000
(3,401,350)
(2,505,763)
(1,119,280)
800,000
144,705

144,705
(28,476) $

5,672,800

0
175,069
(222,372)

(256,627)

NET CASH PROVIDED / (USED) FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

PUD No. 1 of Whatcom County

(14,625) $

(3,271,067)
175,069
(222,372)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Capital Debt
800,000
Purchase of Capital Assets
(2,391,606)
Principal paid on Capital Debt
(1,882,284)
Interest paid on Capital Debt
(987,430)
Capital Contributions
800,000
Assessments Received for 2007 & 2016 debt payments
NET CASH PROVIDED / (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
$ (3,661,319) $
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received

239,972

TOTAL

$

780

(5,281,688)

291,481

$

780

$

291,481

(9,344) $

69,140

$

635,289

263,240
253,897

$

95,563
164,703

13,273,978
$ 13,909,267
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As of December 31, 2019
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RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activity
A Depreciation
B Decrease (Increase) in Net Accounts Receivable
D Decrease (Increase) in Prepayments
Y Interfund Transfers
L Increase (Decrease) in Account Payable
R Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Employee Payable
U Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Insurance Claims Reserve
M Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Utility Taxes
N Increase (Decrease) in Contractor Retainage
S Increase (Decrease) in Deposits & Other Payables
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
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|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

411

INDUSTRIAL
WATER

GRANDVIEW

$ 3,547,665

$

956,781
(36,203)
2,722,672
(75,005)
(17,513)
(2,671)
2,212
42,153
1,905
$ 7,141,997

34,179

75,720
3,517
127,723
(3,958)
(1,331)
(574)
11
4,685
$

239,972

481

490

500

ELECTRIC

BPA-ALCOA
ESCROW

INTERNAL
SERVICE

$

427,961

$

442,658
13,130
1,067,475
(67,059)
400
2,461
8,341
$ 1,895,367

(14,625) $

$

0

217,069
(49)
248
(3,917,871)
33,480
41,751
(93)
35,553
-

(14,625) $ (3,589,911)

TOTAL

$ 3,995,180

1,692,228
(19,605)
248
(112,542)
22,907
(2,938)
4,684
86,047
6,590
$ 5,672,800

Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
NOTE 12 - PROPERTY TAX
The Whatcom County Treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the county for all taxing authorities.

January 1
February 14
April 30
May 31
October 31

Property Tax Calendar
Tax is levied and become an enforceable lien against
properties.
Tax bills are mailed.
First of two equal installment payments is due.
Assessed value of property established for next year's
levy at 100 percent of market value.
Second installment is due.

Whatcom County annually publishes the ‘Statement of Assessed Valuations, Tax Rates, and Taxes Levied Within the
Various Taxing Districts of Whatcom County’. The District’s assessed value is equal to the Total Value of Taxable
Property of Whatcom County. The District has assessed valuation of taxable property for 2019 was $32,203,527,231.
This information can be found at http://www.co.whatcom.wa.us/178/Annual-Tax-Book.
The District may levy up to $0.45 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general District services.
The District had no tax levies for 2019 or 2018.
Washington State Constitution and Washington State Law, RCW 84.55.010 and RCW 54.16.080, limit the rate.
NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT
In January 2002, the Public Utility District No.1 of Whatcom County became a member of the Public Utility Risk
Management Services, [PURMS], a joint self-insurance fund. Its membership is comprised of 16 Public Utility
Districts and NOANET, a Washington nonprofit mutual corporation providing broadband communications services.
The Public Utility Risk Management Services, Joint Self-Insurance Fund was organized as of December 30, 1976,
pursuant to the provisions of the Revised Code of Washington, Chapter 54.16.200 and inter-local agreements. The
program’s general objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the member public utilities, a
program of insurance, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program.
The District is a member of the Liability and Property Pools. The risks shared by the members are defined in the
member’s Self-Insurance Agreement. Both pools (liability and property) operate independently of one another. The
Fund maintains assets from which liability claims against the member Districts and property losses of member
Districts are paid and, through assessments of the members to replenish these assets, the members share joint liability
among themselves for losses incurred. The Fund also purchases excess insurance for losses above the $1,000,000 for
liability and above $250,000 for property.
The members, through the Fund, provide liability self-insurance for the first $1 million of individual loss claims.
Assessments for the liability pool are based upon a formula whose elements include: basic fees, historic claims
experience and workers hours. The assessments include amounts for excess insurance premiums, claims experience,
and operating costs. In 2019, the Designated Balance of the Liability pool was $3,500,000. Interim assessments are
levied whenever the level of the liability program falls below $500,000 of the Designated Liability Pool balance.
Through PURMS, an AEGIS liability policy covers an additional $35 million over the initial $1 million. At the end
of 2009, the District decided to also add another $25 million in coverage through an EIM policy over the previous $36
million in coverage.
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Effective April 1, 1997 the Fund established a self-insurance program for member’s property. The property program
provides property self-insurance for the first $250,000 of individual loss claims. Assessments for the property pool
are based upon a formula whose elements include: basis fees, property values and risk based rates. The assessments
include amounts for excess insurance premiums, claims experience, and operating costs. For the property program,
member Districts are obligated to replenish to the Designated Balance, which in 2019 was $750,000 through annual
assessments. Interim assessments are levied whenever the level of the property program is reduced to an amount less
than $500,000. PURMS maintains an Excess Property Insurance for its members in the Property Pool of $200 million.
PURMS, per an annual actuarial report, maintains an asset on their books called the Year-End Claims Reserve
Receivable. This is an estimate of unreported and unresolved claims outstanding at year-end. It was recommended
that this Reserve needs to be reflected on the balance sheet of the insurance pool members. The District started
recording this reserve in 2016. Per the year-end Actuarial report, the District’s share of the Claims Reserve Receivable
at year end was $57,336 ($49,340 for the Liability Pool, $7,996 for the Property Pool), compared to the 2018 share
balance of $60,274 ($49,730 for the Liability Pool, $10,544 for the Property Pool), a $2,938 reduction.
A comprehensive 2019 Annual Report can be obtained by contacting:
Public Utility Risk Management Services
Administered by Pacific Underwriters
PO Box 68787, Seattle, WA 98168
Phone; 800-562-5226 FAX: 206-248-0130
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Risk pool insurance premiums and pool assessments for the District were as follows for 2019 and 2018:
INVOICE
DATE

CARRIER

TYPE

KIND

|

PREMIUM /
ASSESSMENT

DISTRICT
COST

PURMS 2018
1/3/2018
1/3/2018
7/2/2018
7/9/2018
11/13/2018
11/13/2018
11/13/2018
12/31/2018

LIABILITY
AEGIS
EIM
AEGIS
GENERAL ASSESSMENT
EVEREST NATIONAL
BEAZLEY
GENERAL ASSESSMENT
GENERAL ASSESSMENT

LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY

LIAB $35M EXCESS $1M
LIAB $25M EXCESS $36M
PROF LIAB [E&O]
LIAB GENRL ASSESS
FRONTING POLICY
CYBER POLICY $10M EXCESS $500K
LIAB GENRL ASSESS
LIAB GENRL ASSESS

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

1,386,050.38
220,834.13
164,511.69
553,952.00
5,000.00
112,029.22
585,226.00
194,917.00
3,222,520.42

1.56%
1.56%
1.70%
1.56%
1.65%
1.59%
1.76%
1.60%

25,031.13
2,562.68
9,441.77
77.90
1,843.86
9,303.22
3,421.96
51,682.52

4/6/2018
7/9/2018
12/31/2018

PROPERTY
NATIONAL UNION & HOMESITE
GENERAL ASSESSMENT
GENERAL ASSESSMENT

PROPERTY
PROPERTY
PROPERTY

$200M EXCESS $250K
PROP GENRL ASSESS
PROP GENRL ASSESS

|
|
|

936,227.45
256,354.00
190,060.00
1,382,641.45

2.77%
3.24%
3.25%
2.93%

25,971.21
8,313.71
6,184.88
40,469.80

PURMS 2019
1/3/2019
1/3/2019
6/28/2019
4/15/2019
11/12/2019
11/12/2019
11/12/2019
9/5/2019
11/12/2019
12/31/2019

LIABILITY
AEGIS
EIM
AEGIS
GENERAL ASSESSMENT
EVEREST NATIONAL
RETENTION FUNDING ASSESS
BEAZLEY
GENERAL ASSESSMENT
AEGIS
GENERAL ASSESSMENT

LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY
LIABILITY

LIAB $35M EXCESS $1M
LIAB $25M EXCESS $36M
PROF LIAB [E&O] $35M EXCESS $500K
LIAB GENRL ASSESS
FRONTING POLICY
RENTENTION FUNDING
CYBER POLICY $10M EXCESS $500K
LIAB GENRL ASSESS
$35M EXCESS $1M DRONE ENDORSE
LIAB GENRL ASSESS

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

1,476,659.03
390,575.38
163,477.42
512,060.00
5,000.00
50,000.00
112,029.22
540,064.00
4,225.92
451,358.00
3,705,448.97

1.53%
1.53%
1.72%
1.53%
1.74%
1.53%
1.73%
1.53%
1.72%
1.61%

28,602.47
2,504.17
8,806.21
76.57
871.84
1,716.10
9,353.97
64.73
7,762.99
59,759.05

4/2/2019
6/6/2019
10/2/2019
12/31/2019

PROPERTY
NATIONAL UNION & HOMESITE
GENERAL ASSESSMENT
GENERAL ASSESSMENT
GENERAL ASSESSMENT

PROPERTY
PROPERTY
PROPERTY
PROPERTY

$200M EXCESS $250K
PROP GENRL ASSESS
PROP GENRL ASSESS
PROP GENRL ASSESS

|
|
|
|

1,039,453.40
272,822.00
323,311.00
90,173.00
1,725,759.40

2.52%
3.06%
3.05%
3.05%
2.73%

26,213.18
8,341.46
9,872.83
2,751.78
47,179.25

NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In February 2020, the Governor of the state of Washington declared a state of emergency in response to the spread of
a deadly new virus. In the weeks following the declaration, precautionary measures to slow the spread of the virus
have been ordered. These measures include closing schools, colleges and universities, canceling public events,
prohibiting public and private gatherings, and requiring people to stay home unless they are leaving for an essential
function.
The District has taken measures to ensure the health and safety of customers, contractors, and employees. The District
offices closed to the public March 23rd and are operating with a skeleton staff. All mandatory public meetings have
switched to phone or video conferencing.
As of April, the District has experienced minimal increased expenses, no significant decrease in water and power sold
to customers, but a slowdown in payments in the Grandview water utility. The Grandview Water Utility provides a
small portion of the Districts total water systems revenue.
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The length of time these measures will be in place, and the full extent of the financial impact on the District is unknown
at this time.
In April 2020, Alcoa Intalco aluminum smelter announced they would be curtailing operations in the smelter section
of the plant in July 2020. Alcoa Intalco consumes about 8.5% of the water sold by the District’s Industrial Water
system. Alcoa’s curtailment decision appears to be based on aluminum market slowdown as they supply aluminum to
residential and aircraft industrial production.
In August 2018, a contractor working on boring under the road for installation of additional fiber, hit our Douglas
water transmission line causing substantial damage. The District declared an emergency to complete repairs and
subsequently went into negotiations with the contractor and their insurance company to recoup damages. In February
2020, an agreement was reached and in April 2020, $348,000 was received as compensation.
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Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Western Conference of Teamsters Pension Plan
Schedule of Employer Contributions
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

2019
Contribution Rate per Qualified Hour
Annual Maximum Hours

$

6.00

2018
$

5.75

2017
$

5.50

2016
$

5.50

2015
$

5.50

2014
$

5.25

2013
$

5.00

2012
$

4.75

2011
$

$

2,080

2,080

2,080

2,080

2,080

2,080

$ 12,480

$ 11,960

$ 11,440

$ 11,440

$ 11,440

$ 10,920

$ 10,400

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

7

Actual Contributions

$ 75,191

$ 72,444

$ 73,521

$ 68,833

$ 73,194

$ 65,723

$ 60,916

$ 61,645

$ 60,542

$ 68,238

Covered-employee payroll

$ 452,268

$ 423,316

$ 487,409

$ 420,577

$ 407,579

$ 405,406

$ 421,384

$ 390,873

$ 414,130

$ 423,233

17.1%

15.1%

16.4%

18.0%

16.2%

14.5%

15.8%

14.6%

16.1%

# Covered Employees at 12/31

Contributions as a % of covered-employee payroll 16.6%

Note: The contribution is solely based on straight-time compensable hour paid to the employee.
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$

9,880

2,080

4.40

2,080

Maximum Annual Contribution per Employee

2,080

4.50

2010

$

9,360

2,080
$

9,152

AGENDA ITEM #5b
May 12, 2020

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1
of Whatcom County
1705 Trigg Road  Ferndale, WA 98248
P: (360) 384-4288  F: (360) 384-4849

Memo
To:

Commissioners Deshmane, McClure and Murphy

From:

Brian Walters – Assistant General Manager

Date

May 12, 2020

Re:

Approve Professional Consulting Services Agreement with The Energy Authority

Requested Action: APPROVE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE
ENERGY AUTHORITY AND AUTHORIZE THE DISTRICT’S GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE
AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO FINAL STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL REVIEW.
Background: Based on load growth on the District’s electric system in 2019, the District’s power purchases from BPA
are approaching the Tier 1 allocation amount available from BPA in accordance with the District’s Power Purchase
Agreement. Once the allocation amount is exceeded, additional power purchased from BPA will be based on BPA’s
short term market purchase price. This is because the District elected to purchase BPA’s market based power product
through BPA’s fiscal year 2024, which ends September 30, 2024. District staff elected to purchase this power product in
lieu of buying non-federal power to cover above Tier 1 power allocation requirements. Pricing of the market product is
projected to continue to be less than BPA Tier 1 priced power through 2024.
The load growth above has been driven by end-use loads already connected to the District’s electric system (i.e. Refinery
and District’s water treatment plants). In addition to this organic growth, District staff over the past couple of years has
interacted with several entities, who have and are proposing new industrial facilities to be constructed within the Cherry
Point area. All of the inquiries have involved large electric load requirements and connections to the District’s electric
system. Given the magnitude of the loads, should any one of the projects proceed, the District would likely need to
procure power supply from a non-federal entity source. This would be in addition to the continuing purchase of power
from BPA.
One of the main reasons driving the search for non-federal power is that BPA’s policy regarding adding new large single
loads (NLSL) above ten average megawatts (10 aMWs) is that the price of power to be supplied would at an NLSL rate.
This rate is currently well above what the District pays for its BPA Tier 1 power. The NLSL pricing structure is a
historical carry-over from the Regional Power Act. The Act is federal legislation enacted in the early 1980’s and the
original intent for the NLSL rate was to discourage BPA from supplying federal power to large industrial concerns at
very low rates. The NLSL rate was seen as a way of creating a level playing field for areas of the US that wanted to
attract industry, but were served by private power companies with much higher power rates.
Another factor driving District staff to assess future power supply needs and the availability and pricing of non-federal
power is the expiration of the District’s Power Purchase Agreement with BPA On September 30, 2028. Discussions
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among BPA and its public utility customers have already begun with regard to what the new follow-on agreement might
look like and how it would differ from the current contract. Negotiation and document drafting will likely begin in
earnest during 2022 with the expectation that new power purchase agreements will be offered and signed prior to BPA’s
fiscal year 2028.
Given the above factors, District staff has begun reaching out to organizations that provide consulting assistance
particularly with regard to public utilities seeking to diversify their power supply portfolios; purchase and manage nonfederal power; acquire low carbon and renewable resources; and make transmission arrangements to deliver power to
their electric systems.
One of the organizations, which staff has contacted is The Energy Authority (TEA), which has main offices in Bellevue,
Washington and Jacksonville, Florida. TEA is a non-profit entity owned by seven municipal and state-chartered electric
utilities located across the US. Among its 60 public power customers are eight PUDs in this State. TEA’s consulting
services offerings are a good match with the District’s current and near future electric power supply needs.
Staff recommends that the Commission approve entering into a Professional Consulting Services Agreement (PSA) with
The Energy Authority (TEA). The Agreement, as drafted, has an initial term, which would expire on December 31,
2022. The general areas of consulting services, which TEA might provide under the Agreement are the following:











Training on wholesale energy markets and procurement
Power supply planning
Counterparty credit risk assessment
Long-term load forecasting
LMP market analysis
Risk policy development
Regulatory market monitor4ing
Budget development and financial analysis
Change management
Renewables integration

The District has determined that the services to be performed by TEA in accordance with the PSA are
Necessary and Routine under Governor Inslee’s Proclamation No. 20-08 because:
(1) It is Necessary because the District is required to plan and maintain its critical infrastructure,
including its electric system, during and after the COVID-19 pandemic, and
(2) It is Routine because regular planning for the operation of its electric system is a routine and
regular practice of the District.
Specific tasks to be performed by TEA will be identified from time to time by the District in consultation with TEA.
TEA will develop a proposed Scope of Work (SOW), based on the tasks discussed and include an associated budget. The District
will then develop a Work Order with budget, utilizing the SOW as the basis for the scope of services to be provided by TEA. All
Work Orders to be executed under the PSA must be approved in writing and in advance of the work to be performed, by the
Commission and/or General Manager of the District as District Policy specifies.
Fiscal Impact: The Agreement, if approved, will have no impact on the District’s 2020 Budget. Any work performed
under the Agreement would be expensed against the line item budget for administrative consulting services.
Recommended Action: APPROVE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE
ENERGY AUTHORITY AND AUTHORIZE THE DISTRICT’S GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE
AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO FINAL STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL REVIEW.
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AGENDA ITEM #5c
May 12, 2020

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO.1
of Whatcom County
1705 Trigg Road  Ferndale, WA 98248
P: (360) 384-4288  F: (360) 384-4849

Memo
To:

Commissioners Deshmane, McClure, and Murphy

From: Stephan Jilk
Date:

May 12, 2020

Re:

Approve Amendment No. 1 to Grant with Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife to Support
Development of the WRIA 1 Regional Water Supply and Management Plan

Requested Action – APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO GRANT WITH WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE TO SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT OF THE WRIA 1
REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AND MANAGEMENT PLAN IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$100,000.00 PENDING FINAL REVIEW BY DISTRICT STAFF/LEGAL COUNSEL AND AUTHORIZE
GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN THE CONTRACT.
Background – The District is a member of the Watershed Management Board (WMB), which includes the City
of Bellingham, all small cities in Whatcom County, Whatcom County Government, the Lummi Nation, the
Nooksack Tribe and the Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW). The WMB acts as the
WRIA 1 Local Integrating Organization (LIO) and is responsible for integrating and coordinating local
activities related to the Puget Sound Partnership’s (PSP) Puget Sound Action Agenda.
PSP provides LIO’s opportunities to fund Near Term Actions on an annual basis. Each LIO (nine total
throughout Puget Sound) may submit Near Term Actions for consideration for funding up to $100,000 total per
LIO. In early 2019, the District, with the support of WMB members, submitted a Near Term Action (NTA) to
develop a WRIA 1 Regional Water Supply Plan (RWSP). The NTA was approved by PSP Habitat Strategic
Imitative Leads for funding.
The NTA was based on a “Phase 1” scope of work for Strategy 3 of the WRIA 1 Watershed Management
Board’s 5-Year Work Plan. “Phase 1” is intended to scale the task from a WRIA 1 – wide effort to pilot areas
using grant funds through the WDFW for the NTA included in the 2018-2022 Action Agenda for Puget
Sound. The NTA total budget submitted for “Phase 1” was $250,000. The NTA allowed funding is up to
$100,000 annually and the District received notification that it was awarded the $100,000. The WMB will
also leverage other grants and efforts underway that are directly related to Strategy 3, Regional (WRIAWide) Water Supply Plan (RWSP).
The purpose of the (RWSP) is to establish a framework to address water supply needs for instream and
out of stream uses. The RWSP is integrating existing plans such as the Whatcom County Coordinated
Water System Plan with other out-of-stream water uses and instream water needs, and in context with
land use, water quality, habitat, and stream flows.
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In October 2019, the Watershed Management Team agreed to support the annual $100,000 funding for the 2020
Near Term Action to be used for continued funding of the RWSP and the District submitted the request to PSP.
The District was notified in December 2019 that the funds were approved.
In January 2020, the Commission approved the Grant with Washington for the first $100,000. The Whatcom
PUD staff and WDFW worked on amending the scope of work to reflect the additional $100,000, which will
provide funding to allow the RWSP to incorporate more of a complete plan beyond the three pilot areas.
Amendment No. 1 increases the overall grant to a total of not to exceed $200,000.
Fiscal Impact – No fiscal impact to the District. The District will pass funds from the WDFW grant to subcontractors who will perform the work.
Recommended Action – APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO GRANT WITH WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE TO SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT OF THE WRIA 1
REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AND MANAGEMENT PLAN IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$100,000.00 PENDING FINAL REVIEW BY DISTRICT STAFF/LEGAL COUNSEL AND AUTHORIZE
GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN THE CONTRACT.
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GRANT AMENDMENT

TITLE:
GRANTEE:

Regional (WRIA 1) Water Supply
and Management Plan
Public Utility District No. 1
Whatcom County

AMENDMENT EFFECTIVE DATE:
April 15, 2020

WDFW GRANT NUMBER: 19-14467
AMENDMENT NUMBER:

1

AMENDMENT VALUE:

$100,000.00

GRANT END DATE:
March 15, 2022

The above-referenced Grant between the State of Washington, Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW); and Public
Utility District 1 of Whatcom County is hereby amended as follows:

Grant Section – D | Period of Performance

This Amendment extends the Grant Agreement from March 1, 2021 to March 15, 2022.

Grant Section – E | Compensation/Payment

The Grant award is increased by $100,000 for work authorized under this Amendment.
This Amendment brings the AWARD allowed under this Agreement to $200,000

AMEND Agreement Section – I | Contract Representatives
Cynthia Harbison, Office 360-628-0402 | cynthia.harbison@dfw.wa.gov
Sean Williams, Office 360-902-8136 | sean.wlliams@dfw.wa.gov

AMEND Attachment D | Statement of Work

This Amendment replaces the Attachment D – Statement of Work in its entirety with the attached document of the
same title.

No other changes authorized under this Amendment.
All other terms and conditions of the Grant remain in full force and effect.
THIS AMENDMENT is executed by the persons signing below, who warrant that they have the authority to
execute this Amendment.

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NUMBER 1
OF WHATCOM COUNTY

WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF
FISH AND WILDLIFE

_________________________________
SIGNATURE AND DATE

_________________________________
SIGNATURE AND DATE

_________________________________
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

_________________________________
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

CMS No. 20-15439
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ATTACHMENT D

STATEMENT OF WORK
Regional (WRIA 1) Water Supply and Management Plan
Project Tracking number (Novatus):

19-14467

Sub-recipient:

Whatcom County Public Utility District Number 1

Sub-recipient Contact:

Rebecca Schlotterback, rebeccas@pudwhatcom.org
1705 Trigg Road
Ferndale, WA 98248
(360) 384-4288 ex 13

Habitat Strategic Initiative (SI) Grant Manager:
Cynthia Harbison, Cynthia.harbison@dfw.wa.gov
Sean Williams, nep.grants@dfw.wa.gov
Original Start Date:
Amendment Effective Date:
Expiration Date:
Not to exceed:

November 15, 2019
April 15, 2020
March 15, 2022
$200,000

Tracking information:
NTA number:
STORET ID (if applicable)
Strategic Initiative:
Selected by SIAT or LIO:
Vital sign links:
Implementation Strategy alignment:
LIO geographies:
Amount of dollars leveraged:
Number of positions supported:

2018-0401
Habitat
LIO
Chinook
Chinook
Whatcom

The following Statement of Work is based on the sub-recipient’s Near-Term Action (NTA) proposal, which is referenced in the 2018
Puget Sound Action Agenda.

20-15439
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OVERVIEW
The purpose of the Regional (WRIA 1-Wide) Water Supply and Management Plan is to establish a framework to address
water supply needs for instream and out-of-stream uses. Using a pilot-based approach, this grant will address water use
in a select few drainage basins to inform the future development of the WRIA 1 Water Supply and Management Plan. For
this project, interdisciplinary teams will engage in a collaborative process to identify, evaluate, and develop a water
supply and management plan that addresses the needs of instream and out-of-stream water needs in the determined pilot
areas. A range of options will be identified to manage water for human and economic needs, instream flows, and
threatened salmonid populations including Chinook, bulltrout, and steelhead. The coordination process for the project
will be consistent with the WRIA 1 Watershed Management Board framework established by Interlocal Agreement in
2016. Information gathered from this project will be integrated into a future regional WRIA 1 wide plan.
With the addition of FY19 funds, the Public Utility District Number 1 of Whatcom County will expand the scope of the
pilot project to a WRIA 1-Wide scale. This expansion is represented as Phase 2 of the project.

GOALS & MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES
The goal is to develop a Regional (WRIA 1-Wide) Water Supply Plan that addresses water supply needs for instream and
out-of-stream uses. The objectives for this grant have been scaled to the funding that is available:
•
•
•

•

Coordinate a technical work group.
Engage additional stakeholders to participate in review of draft materials and work products.
Phase 1: Water Supply Pilot
o Develop criteria to establish two key drainage areas to serve as pilot or focus areas.
o Establish two pilot or focus areas.
o Identify, compile, and synthesize data in pilot areas for documenting existing and future instream and
out-of-stream water uses and needs.
o Identify and evaluate solutions for meeting water supply needs in pilot areas for early action
implementation plan.
Phase 2: Expand Pilot to WRIA 1-Wide Scale
o Identify, compile, and synthesize data in drainage areas for documenting existing and future instream
and out-of-stream water uses and needs.
o Identify and evaluate solutions for meeting WRIA 1 water supply needs.

TASKS & DELIVERABLES
Public Utility District Number 1 of Whatcom County (hereafter referred to as the sub-recipient) will manage all aspects of
the project including execute sub-contracts; manage sub-contractors; project invoicing and fiscal management; and draft
deliverables for review. The sub-recipient will provide all deliverables and invoices to the Habitat SI Grant Manager. It is
preferred that deliverables and invoices are uploaded to the provided box.com folder for the grant but they may also be
emailed to nep.grants@dfw.wa.gov. Additional detail is available in the Habitat SI Grant Guidance
(https://deptofnaturalresources.box.com/v/habitatgrantguidance2018).
The following are the tasks, deliverables, and deadlines associated with this sub-award:
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TASK 1. Project Development
This task must be completed before initiating any other work under this sub-award. Work completed on other tasks prior
to completion of Task 1 may be ineligible for reimbursement.

1.1 Develop Project Plan
The sub-recipient will complete the project plan template (https://pspwa.box.com/v/HSI-NEPGrantGuidance) describing
the work necessary to achieve the grant deliverables. The plan includes a timeline, workplan, and project success
measures, The Habitat SI will have the opportunity to provide input on the plan and establish mutual expectations. The
plan provides the framework for quarterly reporting (Task 2.2) and clear communication between the Habitat SI and the
sub-recipient.

1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE PROJECT PLAN (QAPP) DEVELOPMENT

Per EPA sub-award terms and conditions, the sub-recipient must submit a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) or
QAPP waiver to the Washington State Department of Ecology’s NEP Quality Assurance Coordinator (NEP QC) using
EPA’s NEP guidance for QAPPs. See http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/eap/qa/docs/NEPQAPP/index.html. If a QAPP is
required, the sub-recipient will work with the NEP QC to develop and approve the QAPP. If a QAPP is needed, some
products created under this agreement will be subject to review by the NEP QC. Work with the NEP QC to determine
requirements.
Work related to collecting environmental data may not begin until the QAPP or waivers are completed and approved.
The project plan (Task 1.1) may be appended to the QAPP waiver form in lieu of completing page 2.

Task
Number
1.1

Deliverable

Estimated
Cost
$1,000

Project plan
Updated Project Plan

1.2

July 20, 2020

Copy of signed QAPP following submittal to and
approval of Ecology

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST FOR TASK 1:

Target Completion
Date
January 20, 2020

$15,000 December 18, 2020

$16,000.00

TASK 2. Project Management

This task describes the data collection and reporting requirements associated with this sub-award.

2.1 PROJECT FACTSHEET

The sub-recipient will create a project factsheet (using provided template) and submit it in MS Word with the first
quarterly progress report. These will be made publicly available. An updated fact sheet will be completed at the end of
the grant under Task 2.3.

2.2 PROGRESS REPORTING

The sub-recipient will provide an updated version of the Project Plan developed in Task 1.1 each quarter. Target
completion dates in the deliverable table will specify the date that progress reporting is due for the following quarterly
reporting periods:
Quarter 1 reporting period:
Quarter 2 reporting period:
Quarter 3 reporting period:
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Quarter 4 reporting period:
October 1 – December 31
These periods are synced to inform the Grant Program’s EPA reporting schedule and timely reporting is critical.
The Final Report template (2.3) is completed instead of updating the Project Plan in the final quarter of the grant.
*State fiscal year closeout. Ensure all invoices for work performed through June 30 are submitted by July 15.
Reporting requirements:

2.2.1 EPA FEATS REPORTING

Complete semi-annual FEATS (Financial and Ecosystem Accounting Tracking System) progress reports, as well as a
final FEATS report. The final FEATS report, reflecting the final project billing, will be provided by the sub-recipient
during project closeout, within 60 days of the expiration of the grant, and will describe the entire project,
highlighting project outcomes and discussing lessons learned.
FEATS Reporting Periods:
April 1 – September 30
Due with Quarter 1 progress reporting
October 1 – March 31
Due with Quarter 3 progress reporting
Draft final FEATS report completed by:
March 1, 2022

2.2.2 PUGET SOUND PARTNERSHIP NTA REPORTING

NTA owners are required to report on the following:
• Progress reporting of their actions on a semiannual basis (spring & fall)
• Financial status of their actions on an annual basis (summer)

2.3 FINAL PROJECT REPORT

A final report will be written by the sub-recipient which includes a summary of the methods, results, lessons learned, and
recommendations for future work. The final report will evaluate the success of achieving the success measures identified
in the project plan. Included with the final project report will be a Final Project Factsheet. A template will be provided for
the Final Report and Final Project Factsheet.

Task
Number
2.1

Deliverable
Project Factsheet

Estimated
Cost
In-Kind

January 20, 2020

Updated Project Factsheet

October 19, 2020

Final Project Factsheet

January 17, 2022

2.2

Quarterly progress reporting

In-Kind

2.3

Final report, including draft Final FEATS

$6,000

January 20, 2020
April 20, 2020
July 20, 2020
October 19, 2020
January 18, 2021
April 19, 2021
July 19, 2021
October 18, 2021
January 17, 2022

Draft

January 17, 2022

Final

March 1, 2022

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST FOR TASK 2:
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TASK 3. Interdisciplinary Team Coordination
3.1 TEAM COORDINATION

The sub-recipient will convene an interdisciplinary team that includes technical staff of local governments and the Salmon
Co-Managers with expertise in or that are involved with water supply, fisheries, instream flows, hydrology, habitat, water
quality, climate change impacts, agricultural needs, and land use. The team will be engaged throughout the project and
the process will be coordinated under the WRIA 1 Management Team. Other technical, planning, administrative, and/or
management staff will be invited to participate as identified for purposes of addressing unique characteristics of the pilot
areas and/or advancing policy discussions outside of Management Team. The sub-recipient will document these
coordination efforts and provide regular updates to the WRIA 1 Management Team and WRIA 1 Planning Unit.

Task
Number
3.1

Deliverable

Estimated
Cost
$6,000

Documentation of coordination efforts:
• Roster of interdisciplinary team
• Meeting agendas/Handouts
• Meeting sign-in sheets
• Meeting notes

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST FOR TASK 3:

Target Completion
Date
March 1, 2022

$6,000.00

TASK 4. Quantification of Current and Future Water Use and Needs
4.1 DATA COMPILATION AND PRELIMINARY DATABASE DEVELOPMENT
Phase I: The sub-recipient will identify and compile relevant data for existing and future instream and out-of-stream
water uses and needs within the pilot areas. The sub-recipient will produce a summary document of relevant metadata
and a map of the data coverage. The types of data to be collected may include but are not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Water right permits and source (ground or surface water)
Current and future water supply needs by type of use
Stream flows
Species and life stage distribution and habitat use
Habitat conditions
Land use

Phase II: The sub-recipient will expand upon the data compilation conducted in the pilot areas to encompass a broader,
WRIA wide context. The metadata and summary maps conducted in Phase I will be revised and expanded to reflect the
expanded focus area.
The sub-recipient will serve as a repository for the data sets and information collected. Data collected will be made
publicly available, in the form it is collected, upon the completion of the grant (Task 4.3)

4.2 DATA SYNTHESIS

The sub-recipient will synthesize data compiled in Task 4.1 to characterize current and project water use for both instream
and out of stream needs. Anticipated data synthesis tasks may include but are not limited to:
CMS No. 20-15439
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•

Inventorying existing water right permits by source of water to identify surplus water and/or additional water
supply needs

•

Synthesizing future water supply needs in the pilot areas over next 80 years

•

Synthesize water use projections for next 50 years for agriculture including potential seasonal variations resulting
from climate change projections

•

Summarizing stream flow information

•

Summarizing current and historic fish presence

•

Summarizing current and historic habitat conditions

•

Summarizing land use effects on water availability

•

Summarizing instream flow needs for fish.

The results of the data synthesis will be summarized in a technical report and summary map of the data coverage. The
report will include an introduction, methods, results, and conclusions sections with sufficient detail to support replication
of the synthesis. The synthesis may also identify data gaps. The sub-recipient will solicit external peer-review of the draft
technical report from a minimum of two reviewers as well as comments from the technical and management teams.
There will be two technical reports that will be developed.
•

The first is a Phase 1 report which will serve as an early action list based on the pilot areas identified by the
Interdisciplinary Team. Data gaps identified in the Phase 1 technical report will be prioritized for purposes of a
monitoring plan to fill data gaps as part of Phase 2. If there are priority data gaps, the sub-recipient will work
with their interdisciplinary technical team to facilitate development of a monitoring plan. A QAPP for the
monitoring plan will be completed prior to collecting any data (see Task 1.2).

•

The second Phase 2 report will provide a broader, WRIA wide context. The final report will be accompanied by
documentation of a response to the reviewer comments.

4.3 FINAL PROJECT DATABASE

The sub-recipient will make data sets and information collected publicly available to promote the transparency and
repeatability of analyses conducted under this agreement. The data will be accompanied by a brief summary memo for
potential users that describes the purpose behind the data compilation and the Task 4.1 compilation summary.
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Task
Number
4.1

Deliverable
Phase 1: Compile relevant data:
• Data compilation list including relevant
metadata such as data types, source,
contact information, and a summary of the
data coverage and attributes.
• Summary map(s) showing the data
coverage.

Estimated
Cost
$17,000

A. Phase 1 Draft technical report and summary
map.

$110,000

Final technical report that includes reviewer
comments, response to comments, and final
summary map(s).

April 19, 2021
July 19, 2021

Final technical report that includes reviewer
comments, response to comments, and final
summary map(s).

January 18, 2021

Interdisciplinary Team meeting notes, sign-in
sheets for monitoring plan development
Permanent URL for the publicly available data
and summary memos.

Total Estimated Cost for Task 4:
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October 19, 2020
December 18, 2020

B. Phase 2 Draft technical report and summary
map.

4.3

April 20, 2020

October 19, 2020

Phase 2: Expand relevant data:
• Expanded data compilation list including
relevant metadata such as data types,
source, contact information, and summary
of the data coverage and attributes
Updated and expanded summary map(s)
showing data coverage
4.2

Target Completion Date

$6,000

January 17, 2022

$133,000.00
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TASK 5. Developing Solutions to Meet Water Needs
5.1 ASSESSMENT OF ALTERNATIVES

The sub-recipient will identify and evaluate potential future water supply source alternatives that could be developed to
meet future water needs and/or requirements drawing on work initiated through the 2018 WRIA 1 process to address
ESSB 6091 (Streamflow Restoration Act). Alternatives will be evaluated for technical, economic, regulatory,
administrative, and political feasibility, and may be applicable in the pilot areas and WRIA-wide.
There will be two memos that will be developed.
•
•

The first is a Phase 1 memo which will serve as an early action list based on the pilot areas identified by the
Interdisciplinary Team.
The second Phase 2 memo will provide a broader, WRIA wide context.

Both memos will describe the alternative water supply sources, criteria used to evaluate alternatives, and outcomes of the
evaluation.

Task
Number
5.1

Estimated
Cost

Deliverable
A. Phase 1 Memo describing the alternative
water supply sources, criteria used to
evaluate alternatives for the pilot areas, and
outcomes of the evaluation.
B. Phase 2 memo describing the alternative
water supply sources, criteria used to
evaluate alternatives, and outcomes of the
evaluation.

Total Estimated Cost for Task 5:

$17,110

Target Completion Date
December 18, 2020

October 18, 2021

$17,110.00

TASK 6. Water Supply Report
6.1 PILOT AREAS PHASE 1 REPORT

The sub-recipient will consolidate information from Tasks 3-5 into a Phase 1 report for the pilot areas that includes an
executive summary, problem statement, background information on instream and out-of-stream water uses and current
and future needs, criteria to evaluate alternatives, evaluation of alternatives for early action implementation in pilot areas,
and identify potential alternatives to evaluate as part of the WRIA wide water supply report (Task 6.2). This report will be
rolled up into the Regional (WRIA1-Wide) Water Supply Plan.

6.2 WRIA 1-Wide Water Supply Report
The sub-recipient will consolidate information from Tasks 3-5, and Phase 1 report (Task 6.1) into a report for the WRIA 1wide areas that includes an executive summary, problem statement, background information on instream and out-ofstream water uses and current and future needs, criteria to evaluate alternatives, evaluation of alternatives, and policy
recommendations. The sub-recipient will solicit a minimum of two expert reviews on the draft report. The sub-recipient
will address the reviewer comments in the preparation of the draft report (Task 6.2). The reviewer comments and a
response to reviewer comments will be included.
CMS No. 20-15439
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Task
Number
6.1

Deliverable

Estimated
Cost
$5,630

Draft Phase 1 Pilot Areas Report
Final Phase 1 Pilot Areas Report including
reviewer comments and response to comments

6.2

March 1, 2021
10,930

Draft Regional Water Supply Plan, including peer
review comments and responses.

Total Estimated Cost for Task 6:

Target Completion
Date
January 18, 2021

March 1, 2022

$16,560.00

TASK 7. Broader Impacts and Communication
7.1 WRIA 1 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE WATER PLANNING MEMO

The sub-recipient will produce a briefing memo summarizing the theory, methodology, and outcomes of the regional
water supply planning approach and its application to other Puget Sound watersheds considering watershed-scale
planning efforts.

7.2 PRESENTATION TO LOCAL AND REGIONAL POLICYMAKERS

The sub-recipient will present a summary of the preliminary analysis of the draft WRIA-1 Wide Supply Report and
alternative solutions at an appropriate forum to reach local and regional policymakers.

Task
Number
7.1
7.2

Deliverable
Recommendation briefing memo

Target Completion
Date
March 1, 2022

$700

March 1, 2022

Copy of the presentation and meeting agenda

Total Estimated Cost for Task 7:

Total Grant Amount:
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$4,630

$5,330.00
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AGENDA ITEM #5d
May 12, 2020

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO.1
of Whatcom County
1705 Trigg Road  Ferndale, WA 98248
P: (360) 384-4288  F: (360) 384-4849

Memo
To:

Commissioners Deshmane, McClure, and Murphy

From: Stephan Jilk
Date:

May 12, 2020

Re:

Approve Professional Services Agreement with Aspect Consulting, LLC. to support development of
Phase 1 of the WRIA 1 Regional Water Supply and Management Plan

Requested Action – APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ASPECT
CONSUTLING, LLC. TO SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT OF PHASE 1 OF THE WRIA 1 REGIONAL
WATER SUPPLY AND MANAGEMENT PLAN AND AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN
THE AGREEMENT.
Background – The District is a member of the Watershed Management Board (WMB), which includes the City
of Bellingham, all small cities in Whatcom County, Whatcom County Government, the Lummi Nation, the
Nooksack Tribe and the Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW). The WMB acts as the
WRIA 1 Local Integrating Organization (LIO) and is responsible for integrating and coordinating local
activities related to the Puget Sound Partnership’s (PSP) Puget Sound Action Agenda.
PSP provides LIO’s opportunities to fund Near Term Actions on an annual basis. Each LIO (9 total throughout
Puget Sound) may submit Near Term Actions for consideration for funding up to $100,000 total per LIO. In
early 2019, the District, with the support of WMB members, submitted a Near Term Action (NTA) to develop a
WRIA 1 Regional Water Supply Plan (RWSP). The NTA was approved by PSP Habitat Strategic Initiative
Leads for funding.
The NTA was based on a “Phase 1” scope of work for Strategy 3 of the WRIA 1 Watershed Management
Board’s 5-Year Work Plan. “Phase 1” is intended to scale the task from a WRIA 1 – wide effort to pilot areas
using grant funds through the WDFW for the NTA included in the 2018-2022 Action Agenda for Puget
Sound. The NTA total budget submitted for “Phase 1” was $250,000. The NTA allowed funding is up to
$100,000 annually and the District received notification that it was awarded the $100,000. In January 2020,
the Commission approved the Grant with Washington for the first $100,000.
Phase 1 work required the use of sub-contractors for several of the NTA Tasks. Because the District is
the lead on the NTA it will manage the agreement(s) with any subcontractors. The District released an
RFP on April 8, 2020 requesting proposals for the Phase 1 work. Submittals were due on April 24, 2020
and there were three responsive proposals: Aspect Consulting, RH2 and Washington Water Trust.
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The proposals were reviewed by the RWSP Staff Work Group which consists of staff from the WMB
Board and also included members of the Ag Water Board. Based on the rankings by the RSWP Staff
Group, Aspect Consulting received the highest ranking. The next step is to develop a detailed Task
Order. District staff will work with Aspect Consulting to develop the detailed Task Order which will be
in a not to exceed amount of $70,044.00. The Task Order will be brought to the Commission for final
approval. The work performed by the consultant under the Task Order will result in a Phase 1 Report that will
be used to move into the Phase 2 project which is funded by the $100,000 that was awarded by WDFW through
Amendment No 1 to the WDFW Grant.
Fiscal Impact – No fiscal impact to the District. The District will pass funds from the WDFW grant to subcontractors who will perform the work.
Recommended Action – APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ASPECT
CONSUTLING, LLC. TO SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT OF PHASE 1 OF THE WRIA 1 REGIONAL
WATER SUPPLY AND MANAGEMENT PLAN AND AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN
THE AGREEMENT.
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STANDARD AGREEMENT
FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this
day of May 2020, by
and between the PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 of WHATCOM COUNTY, 1705
Trigg Road Ferndale, WA 98248, hereinafter called the "Whatcom PUD," and ASPECT
CONSULTING, LLC having an address of 710 2nd Ave Ste. 500, Seattle, WA 98104
hereinafter called "Consultant," for a project generally described as:
Consulting Services to support the preparation of the Phase 1 Regional
(WRIA 1) Water Supply Plan including “Data Consolidation and Synthesis
and Identification” and “Instream and Out-of-Stream Water Supply and
Water Management Solutions
WHEREAS, the purpose of the Regional (WRIA1) Water Supply Plan (RWSP) is to
establish a framework to address water supply needs for instream and out-of-stream uses; and
WHEREAS, developing a RWSP is a strategy in the WRIA 1 Watershed Management
Board 2018-2023 Implementation Strategy; and
WHEREAS, Whatcom PUD is serving as the administrative lead for the RWSP Strategy;
and
WHEREAS, Whatcom PUD wishes to obtain consulting services necessary to provide
support for the development of the Phase 1 Regional (WRIA 1) Water Supply Plan; and
WHEREAS, the selection of the consultants, and the Consultant herein, were made after
the completion of a process that complied with all provisions of Federal, State, and local laws
concerning selection of professional services.
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and the mutual
covenants set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:
1. Scope of Services. The specific assignments for the Consultant will be identified
from time to time by Whatcom PUD. The Consultant will prepare and submit to Whatcom PUD
a proposed Task Order which shall include the proposed scope of services and fee estimate for
the proposed assignment. If acceptable, Whatcom PUD will execute the Task Order for the
specific assignment. The scope of Task Order is hereinafter referred to as “Task”. Services of
the Consultant shall conform with the standard of care applicable to professionals providing
similar such services in the State of Washington. All Task Orders must be approved in writing
and approved in advance by the Commission and/or General Manager of Whatcom PUD. The
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply in all Task Orders approved by the Whatcom
PUD, unless a Task Order contains terms and conditions different than those provided herein.
Agreement for Professional Engineering Services
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Any Task Order and this Agreement shall be interpreted to give full meaning to all provisions. In
the event that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any provision of an approved
Task Order, the more specific shall control, and if a conflict still exists, then the Task Order shall
control the specific conflicting provision
2. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on execution of this Agreement
until all tasks associated with the scope of services herein, as may be amended, have been
completed by Consultant or March 15, 2022, whichever is sooner, unless terminated earlier as
provided herein.
3. Termination. Whatcom PUD reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any
time by sending written notice of termination to the Consultant. The notice shall specify a
termination date at least fourteen (14) calendar days after the date the notice is issued. The notice
shall be effective upon the earlier of either actual receipt by the Consultant (whether by fax, mail,
delivery or other method reasonably calculated to be received by the Consultant in a reasonably
prompt manner) or three (3) calendar days after issuance of the notice. Upon the notice date, the
Consultant shall immediately commence to end the Task in a reasonable and orderly manner.
Unless terminated for the Consultant’s material breach, the Consultant shall be paid or
reimbursed for: (a) all hours worked and eligible expenses incurred up to the notice date, less all
payments previously made; and (b) those hours worked and eligible expenses incurred after the
notice date, but prior to the termination date, that were reasonably necessary to terminate the
Task in an orderly manner. The notice shall be sent by the United States Mail to the Consultant’s
address provided herein, postage prepaid, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or
by hand delivery. In addition, the notice may also be sent by any other method reasonably
believed to provide the Consultant actual notice in a timely manner, such as fax. Whatcom PUD
does not by this Section waive, release or forego any legal remedy for any violation, breach or
non-performance of any of the provision of this Agreement. At its sole option, Whatcom PUD
may deduct from the final payment due the Consultant (a) any damages, expenses or costs arising
out of any such violations, breaches, or non-performance and (b) any other back charges or
credits.
4. Compensation and Payment. Whatcom PUD shall pay the Consultant only for
completed Tasks and for services actually rendered which are described in each Task Order.
Such payment shall be full compensation for Task performed or services rendered, including, but
not limited to, all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the
Tasks. The Consultant shall obtain the prior written approval of Whatcom PUD for any charges
for additional services by the Consultant, the additional services of others retained by the
Consultant, or the furnishing of additional supplies, materials or equipment. The Consultant
shall not be entitled to compensation for any such additional charges incurred in violation of this
paragraph.
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4.1 The Consultant shall submit monthly statements, including project budget status and
a narrative progress description of services rendered in a form and in such detail as requested by
Whatcom PUD. Whatcom PUD shall make prompt monthly payments for Task completed to the
Whatcom PUD's satisfaction and billed before the first day of the month. Whatcom PUD shall
review and consider for approval all bills submitted one week prior to a regularly scheduled
meeting of Whatcom PUD Commissioners. After approval of the Consultant’s statement of bill,
Whatcom PUD shall forward the approval to the County Treasurer for payment in the normal
course of events. In no event shall Whatcom PUD be charged interest on payments due under this
Agreement. Whatcom PUD shall not be obligated to pay for services deemed unsatisfactory.
5. Compliance With Laws. All Federal, State and local laws applicable in the rendering
of the services by the Consultant shall be complied with in all respects by the Consultant, as shall
all rules and regulations of Whatcom PUD and any other governmental agency. The Consultant
shall register, as required by RCW 23B.15.010, to do business in the State of Washington and
provide proof of the same to Whatcom PUD.
6. Project Management. Whatcom PUD's designated representative may at any time
issue written directions within the general scope of this Agreement. If any such direction causes
an increase or decrease in the cost of this Agreement or otherwise affects any other provision of
this Agreement, the Consultant shall immediately notify the designated representative in writing
and take no further action concerning those written directions until such time as the parties have
executed a written change order. No additional work shall be performed or charges incurred
unless and until Whatcom PUD approves in writing the change order and the increased cost
thereof. Any work done in violation of this paragraph shall be at the sole expense of the
Consultant.
7. Recordation of Documents Affecting Title. Prior to the execution or recordation of
any documents affecting title to any property, the said document shall be reviewed by Whatcom
PUD. Whatcom PUD shall be responsible for all costs associated with such review.
8. Conflict of Interest. Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest and shall
not acquire an interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner or degree with
its performance under this Agreement. Consultant further covenants that in the performance of
this Agreement, no person having such interest shall be employed by it or any of its
subcontractors.
9. Insurance. Consultant shall procure and maintain during the term of this Agreement
the following insurance:
a.
Comprehensive general liability policy covering all claims for personal
injury (including death) and/or property damage arising out of Consultant’s services. The
limits of liability shall be not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for each
occurrence and in the aggregate unless Whatcom PUD approves in writing a lesser limit.
Agreement for Professional Engineering Services
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b.
Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned and non-owned
automobiles or vehicles used by or on behalf of Consultant. The limits of liability shall
be not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for each occurrence and in the
aggregate unless Whatcom PUD approves in writing a lesser limit.
c.

Workers Compensation Insurance as required by law.

9.1 The foregoing insurance policies shall name Whatcom PUD as an additional insured.
Consultant shall provide two (2) certificates of insurance and, if requested, copies of any policy
to Whatcom PUD. Receipt of such certificate or policy by Whatcom PUD does not constitute
approval by Whatcom PUD of the terms of such policy. Furthermore, the policy of insurance
required herein shall: (i) be written as a primary policy; (ii) expressly provide that such
insurance may not be materially changed, amended or canceled with respect to Whatcom PUD
except upon forty-five (45) days prior written notice from the insurance company to Whatcom
PUD; (iii) contain an express waiver of any right of subrogation by the insurance company
against Whatcom PUD and Whatcom PUD’s elected officials, employees, or agents; (iv)
expressly provide that the insurance proceeds of any loss will be payable notwithstanding any act
or negligence of Consultant which might otherwise result in a forfeiture of said insurance; and
(v) in regard to physical property damage coverage, expressly provide that all proceeds shall be
paid jointly to Whatcom PUD and Consultant.
9.2 If Consultant fails to procure and maintain the insurance described above, Whatcom
PUD shall have the right, but not the obligation, to procure and maintain substitute insurance and
to pay the premiums. Consultant shall pay to Whatcom PUD upon demand the full amount paid
by Whatcom PUD, or Whatcom PUD may offset such premiums against amounts to be paid to
Consultant.
10. Indemnification. Consultant shall indemnify and hold Whatcom PUD harmless from
and against all costs and losses, and all claims, demands, suits, actions, payments and judgments,
arising from personal injury or otherwise, brought or recovered against Whatcom PUD by reason
of any negligent act or omission of Consultant, its directors, officers, agents or employees in the
performance and execution of the Services hereunder, including any and all expenses, legal or
otherwise, incurred by Whatcom PUD or its representatives in the defense of any claim or suit.
11. Confidentiality. Any reports, documents, questionnaires, records, information or
data given to or prepared or assembled under this Agreement which Whatcom PUD requests to
be kept confidential shall not be made available by the Consultant to any individual or
organization without prior written approval of Whatcom PUD, except as may be ordered by a
court of competent jurisdiction. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or
earlier termination of this Agreement. No reports, records, questionnaires, software programs
provided by Whatcom PUD or other documents produced in whole or in part by the Consultant
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under this contract shall be the subject of an application for copyright by or on behalf of the
Consultant.
12. Property of District. All Plans, Reports, Documents, Photographs, Drawings, and
Specifications that are generated by the Consultant for Whatcom PUD under this contract are and
shall remain the property of Whatcom PUD whether the Project for which they are made is
executed or not. The Consultant assumes no liability for any use of the Drawings and
Specifications other than that originally intended for this Project. The Consultant shall retain
originals during the performance of the Services and reproducible copies shall be provided as
requested by Whatcom PUD. Upon completion of the work, the originals of all Plans, Drawings
and Specifications shall be delivered to Whatcom PUD.
13. Electronic Transmission. All electronically transmitted output must be compatible
with existing District software and must be accompanied by at least one (1) copy of written
reports. Consultant shall check with Whatcom PUD for software application and system
compatibility.
14. Contamination. For the purpose of this clause, contamination conditions shall mean
the actual or alleged existence, discharge, release or escape of any irritant, pollutant,
contaminant, or hazardous substance into or upon the atmosphere, land, groundwater, or surface
water of or near the property. Consultant will promptly notify Whatcom PUD of contamination
conditions, if identified.
15. No Employment Relation Created. Consultant is an independent contractor, who
will provide services to Whatcom PUD. The Parties are not “partners” and this Agreement does
not create a partnership, joint venture relationship or an employer-employee relationship. The
relationship between Whatcom PUD and the Consultant is not and shall not be construed to be an
employment relationship under any circumstance, and shall be construed only to be an
independent contractor relationship with Whatcom PUD.
16.
Industrial Insurance Act Defense Waiver. The Consultant expressly waives any
claim of defense against Whatcom PUD as may be provided by the Industrial Insurance Act,
RCW 51.04.010 et seq. for any claim asserted by any person (or relative or estate thereof) for
injury or death sustained during the course of the Contract work.
17. Subconsultants. Contractor shall notify Whatcom PUD in writing of all
subconsultants hired or utilized by Consultant. At the time of project completion, the Consultant
agrees to certify to Whatcom PUD that all subconsultants have been paid in full. Consultant
shall be solely responsible for the performance of any subconsultant. All such subconsultants
shall possess all licenses and insurance as required by the laws of the State of Washington.
18. Discrimination. In connection with the performance of this Agreement, the
Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of
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race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status, or being handicapped, a
disadvantaged person, or a disabled or Vietnam era veteran. The Consultant shall take
affirmative action to ensure that the employees are treated during employment without regard to,
their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status, or being handicapped, or
disadvantaged person, or disabled or Vietnam era veteran.
19. Understanding of Agreement. Each party acknowledges that such party has read
this Agreement and understands its contents, that such party has had the opportunity to have this
Agreement reviewed by an attorney of such party’s choice, and that such party either has
consulted with an attorney or voluntarily has chosen not to consult with an attorney before
signing this Agreement.
20. Litigation/Arbitration. In the event either party herein finds it necessary to bring an
action against the other party to enforce any of the terms, covenants or conditions hereof or any
instrument executed pursuant to this Agreement by reason of any breach or default hereunder or
thereunder, the party prevailing in any such action or proceeding shall be paid all costs and
attorneys’ fees incurred by the other party, and in the event any judgment is secured by such
prevailing party all such costs and attorneys’ fees of collection shall be included in any such
judgment. In the event of any dispute arising between the parties to this Agreement, any such
dispute shall be submitted to binding arbitration as provided herein. The parties shall select an
independent and unbiased arbitrator who is not affiliated directly or indirectly with either party
within ten (10) days after any party demands arbitration. If the parties fail to select or cannot
agree upon an arbitrator within this time, then they shall make application to the Superior Court
of Whatcom County, pursuant to RCW 7.04 et seq., for an order appointing an arbitrator. Such
application may be made at any time after the ten (10) day period has expired. Upon application
to the court for an arbitrator, the Court shall select an arbitrator who shall render his/her decision
no later than sixty (60) days after his/her appointment. If the arbitrator requests a hearing prior to
rendering his/her decision, such hearing shall be held in Whatcom County, Washington within
thirty (30) days of the arbitrator’s appointment. The arbitrator’s decision shall be binding on
both parties. Each party shall bear its own expenses associated with the arbitration but shall
share equally the costs of the arbitrator. RCW Chapter 7.04 and Rules 5.2 through 5.4 of the
Mandatory Arbitration Rules for Superior Court (“MAR”) shall govern the arbitration. In the
event of any inconsistencies between the Binding Arbitration Clause, RCW Chapter 7.04, and
MAR 5.2 through 5.4, the terms of the Binding Arbitration Clause shall take precedence over
RCW Chapter 7.04 and MAR 5.2 through 5.4; and RCW Chapter 7.04 shall take precedence over
MAR 5.2 through 5.
21. Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents and approvals which may or are
required to be given by any party to any other party hereunder shall be in writing and shall be
deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally, sent by facsimile, sent by a nationally
recognized overnight delivery service, or if mailed or deposited in the United States mail and
sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid to:
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District:

Stephan Jilk, General Manager
Public Utility District No. 1 of Whatcom County
1705 Trigg Road | PO Box 2308
Ferndale, WA 98248

Consultant:
Aspect Consulting, LLC
710 2nd Ave, Ste 550
Seattle, WA 98104
or to such other address as the foregoing parties hereto may from time-to-time designate in
writing and deliver in a like manner. All notices shall be deemed complete upon actual receipt or
refusal to accept delivery. Facsimile transmission of any signed original document and
retransmission of any signed facsimile transmission shall be the same as delivery of an original
document.
22. Amendment. No modification, termination or amendment of this Agreement may
be made except by written agreement signed by all parties, except as provided herein.
23. Waiver. No failure by any of the foregoing parties to insist upon the strict
performance of any covenant, duty, agreement, or condition of this Agreement or to exercise any
right or remedy consequent upon a breach thereof shall constitute a waiver of any such breach or
any other covenant, agreement, term or condition. Any party hereto, by notice and only by notice
as provided herein, may, but shall be under no obligation to, waive any of its rights or any
conditions to its obligations hereunder, or any duty, obligation or covenant of any other party
hereto. No waiver shall affect or alter this Agreement, and each and every covenant, agreement,
term and condition of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect with respect to any
other then existing or subsequent breach thereof.
24. Captions. The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only
and in no way define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of this Agreement.
25. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement
shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity,
illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall
be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained
herein.
26. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and
each such counterpart hereof shall be deemed to be an original instrument, but all such
counterparts together shall constitute but one agreement.
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27. Neutral Authorship. Each of the provisions of this Agreement has been reviewed
and negotiated and represents the combined work product of all parties hereto. No presumption
or other rules of construction which would interpret the provisions of this Agreement in favor of
or against the party preparing the same shall be applicable in connection with the construction or
interpretation of any of the provisions of this Agreement.
28. Governing Law. This Agreement and the right of the parties hereto shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.
29. Time of Performance. Time is specifically declared to be of the essence of this
Agreement and of all acts required to be done and performed by the parties hereto.
30. Entire Agreement. The entire agreement between the parties hereto is contained in
this Agreement and the exhibits hereto, and this Agreement supersedes all of their previous
understandings and agreements, written and oral, with respect to this transaction. This Agreement
may be amended only by written instrument executed by the parties subsequent to the date
hereof. The Consultant specifically understands that no District employees other than the project
manager or his/her supervisors are authorized to direct the work of the Consultant and/or amend
this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement.

DISTRICT:
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF WHATCOM COUNTY

By: _______________________________
Title: General Manager
Date signed: ________________________

CONSULTANT:
______________________________________________
By: _______________________________
Title: ______________________________
Firm's EIN: _________________________
Date signed: ________________________
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